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Review Report of Independent Accountants 

 

To ChenFull International Co., Ltd.   

Introduction. 

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of 

ChenFull International Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of September 30, 

2025 and 2024, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive 

income for the three-month periods ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, 

and the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, and the 

consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements 

of cash f lows for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2025 and 

2024, and notes to the consolidated f inancial statements (including a  

summary of signif icant accounting policies). The consolidated f inancial 

statements are the responsibi l ity of the Company’s management and have 

been prepared in conformity with the Regulat ions Governing the 

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securit ies Issuers and International 

Accounting Standard 34, "Interim Financial Reporting," as endorsed and 

effective by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC). Our 

responsibi l ity is to express a conclusion on the consolidated f inancial 

statements based on our review. Scope. Except as described in the Basis 

for Qualif ied Conclusion paragraph, we conducted our review in 

accordance with Statement of Auditing Standards No. 2410, "Review of 

Financial Statements." A review consists principally of making inquiries 

(primarily of persons responsible for f inancial and accounting matters) and 

applying analyt ical and other review procedures. A review is substantially 

less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing 

standards generally accepted in the Republ ic of China; consequently, we 

do not express an audit opinion because we may not become aware of all  

signif icant matters that might be identif ied through an audit.Basis for 

Qualif ied ConclusionAs disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated f inancial 

statements, the f inancial statements of certain non-signif icant subsidiaries, 

included in the accompanying consolidated f inancial statements, were not 

reviewed by independent accountants. As of September 30, 2025 and 2024, 

the total assets of these subsidiaries amounted to NT$284,486 thousand 

and NT$281,853 thousand, respectively, which accounted for 4.51% and 
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4.67% of the consolidated total assets, respectively. Their total l iabil it ies 

amounted to NT$39,308 thousand and NT$56,812 thousand, respectively, 

which accounted for 1.97% and 3.14% of the consolidated total l iabi l it ies, 

respectively. For the three-month periods ended July 1 to September 30, 

2025 and 2024, and the nine-month periods ended January 1 to September 

30, 2025 and 2024, the total comprehensive income  of these subsidiaries 

amounted to NT$19,559 thousand, NT$3,402 thousand, NT$22,590 

thousand, and NT$19,190 thousand, respectively, which accounted for 

16.88%, 3.52%, 8.44%, and 5.34% of the consolidated total comprehensive 

income, respectively.Qualif ied ConclusionBased on our review, except for 

the possible adjustments to the consolidated f inancial statements if  the 

f inancial statements of the non-signif icant subsidiaries mentioned in the 

Basis for Qualif ied Conclusion paragraph were to be reviewed by 

independent accountants, we are not aware of any material modif icat ions 

that should be made to the accompanying consolidated f inancial 

statements in order for them to be presented fairly, in all  material respects, 

in conformity with the Regulat ions Governing the Preparation of Financial 

Reports by Securit ies Issuers and International Accounting Standard 34, 

"Interim Financial Report ing," as endorsed and effective by the Financial 

Supervisory Commission, with respect to the consolidated f inancial 

position of ChenFull International Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of 

September 30, 2025 and 2024, and the consolidated f inancial performance 

for the three-month periods ended July 1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024, 

and the consolidated f inancial performance and consoli dated cash f lows for 

the nine-month periods ended January 1 to September 30, 2025 and 2024.  

 

 

The engagement partners on the audit result ing in this independent 

auditors’ report are Tseng, Chien -Ming and Liu, Shu-Lin.  

Deloitte & Touche 

Taipei, Taiwan 

The Republic of China 

Nov 13, 2025  



- 5 - 

ChenFul l  In te rnat ional  Company L imi ted and  Subsid iar ies  

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

( In  Thousands of  New Ta iwan Dol la rs)   

 

    2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Code  ASSETS  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Current Assets             
1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6 and 28)    $ 274,080     4    $ 452,822     8    $ 1,025,051     17 

1110 
 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss—current  

(Notes 7 and 28) 
 

   162,777     3     131,514     2     130,480     2 
1140  Contract assets—current (Note 22)     781,094     12     1,064,373     18     893,631     15 
1150  Notes receivable—not from related parties (Notes 9 and 28)     7,568     -     14,721     -     3,895     - 
1172  Accounts receivable—not from related parties (Notes 9 and 28)     1,068,550     17     553,482     10     507,041     8 
1200  Other receivables (Notes 9 and 28)     10,078     -     10,787     -     11,221     - 
1220  Current tax assets (Note 4)     -     -     94     -     -     - 
130X  Inventories (Note 10)     721,205     12     665,063     11     655,673     11 
1410  Prepayments (Note 16)     45,119     1     28,812     1     60,375     1 
1476  Other financial assets—current (Notes 16, 28 and 30)     26,049     -     27,308     1     26,615     1 
1479  Other current assets (Note 16)     11,235     -     10,655     -     10,701     - 
11XX  Total Current Assets     3,107,755     49     2,959,631     51     3,324,683     55 

                                 
  Non-current Assets             

1517 
 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 

income—non-current (Notes 8 and 28) 
 

   191,665     3     152,448     3     32,309     1 
1600  Property, plant and equipment (Note 12)     2,462,977     39     2,133,164     36     2,065,159     34 
1755  Right-of-use assets (Note 13)     102,136     2     107,158     2     108,833     2 
1760  Investment properties (Note 14)     309,440     5     312,176     5     313,088     5 
1780  Other intangible assets (Note 15)     14,629     -     15,887     -     15,540     - 
1840  Deferred tax assets (Note 4)     48,298     1     44,808     1     49,999     1 
1980  Other financial assets—non-current (Notes 16, 28 and 30)     34,543     1     34,543     -     34,543     1 
1990  Other non-current assets (Notes 16 and 28)     32,916     -     94,109     2     91,005     1 
15XX  Total Non-current Assets     3,196,604     51     2,894,293     49     2,710,476     45 

                                 
1XXX  TOTAL ASSETS    $ 6,304,359     100    $ 5,853,924     100    $ 6,035,159     100 

               
Code  LIABILITIES AND EQUITY             

  Current Liabilities             
2100  Short-term borrowings (Notes 17 and 28)    $ 785,000     13    $ 330,000     6    $ 878,000     14 
2130  Contract liabilities—current (Note 22)     201,597     3     145,262     2     161,701     3 
2170  Accounts payable (Notes 18 and 28)     324,277     5     373,509     6     353,092     6 
2219  Other payables (Notes 19 and 28)     338,148     6     275,555     5     219,156     3 
2230  Current tax liabilities     4,312     -     74,695     1     39,729     1 
2280  Lease liabilities—current (Notes 13 and 28)     5,784     -     5,651     -     5,607     - 
2399  Other current liabilities (Note 19)     6,259     -     3,358     -     2,732     - 
21XX  Total Current Liabilities     1,665,377     27     1,208,030     20     1,660,017     27 

                                 
  Non-current Liabilities             

2540  Long-term borrowings (Notes 17 and 28)     191,798     3     69,458     1     -     - 
2570  Deferred tax liabilities (Note 4)     14,679     -     15,136     -     15,296     - 
2580  Lease liabilities—non-current (Notes 13 and 28)     105,443     2     109,798     2     111,228     2 
2640  Net defined benefit liabilities—non-current (Note 4)     21,510     -     21,783     1     23,946     1 
2670  Other non-current liabilities—others (Notes 19 and 28)     982     -     1,207     -     1,216     - 
25XX  Total Non-current Liabilities     334,412     5     217,382     4     151,686     3 

                                 
2XXX  Total Liabilities     1,999,789     32     1,425,412     24     1,811,703     30 

                                 

 
 EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Notes 4 

and 21) 
 

           
  Share Capital             

3110  Ordinary share capital     1,137,605     18     1,137,605     19     1,137,605     19 
  Capital Surplus             

3211  Capital surplus—additional paid-in capital     258,010     4     258,010     4     258,010     4 
3213  Capital surplus—premium on conversion of convertible bonds     207,018     3     207,018     4     207,018     3 
3220  Capital surplus—treasury share transactions     2,567     -     1,863     -     1,863     - 

3230 
 Capital surplus—differences between consideration paid or received for 

change in ownership interest in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of 
net assets acquired or disposed 

 

   544,174     9     544,174     9     544,174     9 
3235  Capital surplus—changes in equity of investments in subsidiaries     211,006     4     211,006     4     211,006     4 
3270  Capital surplus—merger premium     10,618     -     10,618     -     10,618     - 
3200  Total Capital Surplus     1,233,393     20     1,232,689     21     1,232,689     20 

  Retained Earnings             
3310  Legal reserve     549,971     9     510,355     9     510,355     9 
3320  Special reserve     -     -     15,491     -     15,491     - 
3350  Unappropriated retained earnings     700,999     11     794,266     14     673,199     11 
3300  Total Retained Earnings     1,250,970     20     1,320,112     23     1,199,045     20 

  Other Equity             

3410 
 Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of foreign 

operations 
 

 (  19,065 )   (  1 )   (  15,260 )     -   (  16,202 )     - 

3420 
 Unrealized gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 
 

   44,226     1     44,252     1     4,319     - 
3400  Total Other Equity     25,161     -     28,992     1   (  11,883 )     - 
3500  Treasury shares   (  31,717 )   (  1 )   (  31,717 )   (  1 )   (  31,717 )   (  1 ) 
31XX  Total Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company     3,615,412     57     3,687,681     63     3,525,739     58 

                                 
36XX  Non-controlling interests (NCI)     689,158     11     740,831     13     697,717     12 

                                 
3XXX  Total Equity     4,304,570     68     4,428,512     76     4,223,456     70 

                                 
  TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    $ 6,304,359     100    $ 5,853,924     100    $ 6,035,159     100 

 

The accompanying notes  are an integral  par t  of  t hese consol i dated f i nanc ia l  s tatements .  
(Please refer  to the review repor t  of  Delo i t t e & Touche,  dated Nov 13,  2025)  

Chai rperson:  Chang,  Al ice Manager :  Huang,  Shu -Yuan Ch ief  Account ing Off icer :  Kung Greg  
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ChenFull  International Company Limited and Subsidiaries  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dolla rs,  Except Earnings Per Share)  

    2025.7.1-2025.9.30  2024.7.1-2025.9.30  2025.1.1-2025.9.30  2024.1.1-2024.9.30 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Operating Revenue (Note 22)                 
4100  Sales revenue    $ 581,311     70    $ 457,705     62    $1,618,845     68    $1,331,290     65 
4520  Construction contract revenue     246,561     30     276,641     38     763,950     32     712,535     35 
4600  Service revenue     1,504     -     1,993     -     4,825     -     5,630     - 
4000  Total Operating Revenue     829,376     100     736,339     100     2,387,620     100     2,049,455     100 

                                           
  Operating Costs (Notes 10, 20 and 22)                 

5110  Cost of goods sold     424,734     51     312,075     43     1,149,693     48     897,229     44 
5520  Cost of construction contracts     194,524     24     204,782     28     594,316     25     498,269     24 
5600  Cost of services     912     -     912     -     2,736     -     2,736     - 
5000  Total Operating Costs     620,170     75     517,769     71     1,746,745     73     1,398,234     68 

                                           
5900  Gross Profit     209,206     25     218,570     29     640,875     27     651,221     32 

                                           
  Operating Expenses (Notes 20 and 23)                 

6100  Selling expenses     22,698     3     12,258     1     59,483     3     57,060     3 
6200  Administrative expenses     66,832     8     56,753     8     191,340     8     180,231     9 
6300  Research and development expenses     22,169     2     14,205     2     53,625     2     42,126     2 

6450 
 Expected credit loss expense (reversal of 

expected credit loss)     6,168     1   (  1,319 )     -     7,368     -     715     - 
6000  Total Operating Expenses     117,867     14     81,897     11     311,816     13     280,132     14 

                                           
6900  Operating Profit     91,339     11     136,673     18     329,059     14     371,089     18 

                                           

 
 Non-operating Income and Expenses 

(Note 23)                 
7100  Interest income     1,494     -     10,455     1     5,825     -     25,314     1 
7010  Other income     7,395     1     4,821     1     20,996     1     13,070     1 
7020  Other gains and losses     36,296     4   (  28,095 )   (  4 )   (  18,470 )   (  1 )     33,732     2 
7050  Finance costs   (  3,319 )     -   (  4,004 )     -   (  7,908 )     -   (  8,359 )     - 

7000 
 Total Non-operating Income and 

Expenses     41,866     5   (  16,823 )   (  2 )     443     -     63,757     4 
                                           

7900  Profit Before Tax     133,205     16     119,850     16     329,502     14     434,846     22 
                                           

7950  Income Tax Expense (Notes 4 and 25)   (  19,786 )   (  2 )   (  22,780 )   (  3 )   (  58,136 )   (  3 )   (  78,902 )   (  4 ) 
                                           

8200  Profit for the Period     113,419     14     97,070     13     271,366     11     355,944     18 
                                           

 
 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI), Net 

of Tax                 

8310 
 Components of OCI that will not be 

Reclassified to Profit or Loss                 

8316 

 Unrealized gains and losses from 
investments in equity instruments at fair 
value through other comprehensive 
income     26     -     313     -   (  26 )     -     1,163     - 

8360 
 Components of OCI that will be 

Reclassified to Profit or Loss                 

8361 
 Exchange differences on translation of 

financial statements of foreign operations     2,407     -   (  798 )     -   (  3,805 )     -     2,445     - 
8300  Total Other Comprehensive Income (Net)     2,433     -   (  485 )     -   (  3,831 )     -     3,608     - 

                                           

8500 
 Total Comprehensive Income for the 

Period    $ 115,852     14    $ 96,585     13    $ 267,535     11    $ 359,552     18 
                                           
  Profit Attributable to:                 

8610  Owners of the Company    $ 90,850     11    $ 78,607     11    $ 213,584     9    $ 275,097     14 
8620  Non-controlling interests     22,569     3     18,463     2     57,782     2     80,847     4 
8600      $ 113,419     14    $ 97,070     13    $ 271,366     11    $ 355,944     18 

                                           

 
 Total Comprehensive Income Attributable 

to:                 
8710  Owners of the Company    $ 93,283     11    $ 78,122     11    $ 209,753     9    $ 278,705     14 
8720  Non-controlling interests     22,569     3     18,463     2     57,782     2     80,847     4 
8700      $ 115,852     14    $ 96,585     13    $ 267,535     11    $ 359,552     18 

                                           
  Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Note 26)                 
  From continuing operations                 

9710  Basic    $ 0.81         $ 0.70         $ 1.89         $ 2.44      
9810  Diluted    $ 0.80         $ 0.69         $ 1.88         $ 2.43      

 
The accompanying notes are an integral  part  of  these consol idated f inancial  statements.  

(Please refer to the review report of  Deloi tte & Touche, dated Nov 13, 2025) 
Chairperson: Chang, Al ice Manager:  Huang, Shu -Yuan Chief Accounting Off icer:  Kung Greg  
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ChenFul l  Internat ional  Company Limi ted and Subsidiar ies  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

2025&2024.1.1-2024.9.30                                 ( In Thousands of  New Taiwan Dol lars )  

    E q u i t y  A t t r i b u t a b l e t o  O w n e r s  o f  t h e  P a r e n t     

                Other Equity         

          
      

Exchange 
Differences on 

 
Unrealized 

Gains (Losses) 
on Financial 

        

          
      

Translation of 
Financial 

 
Assets 

Measured at 
Fair Value 

        

    Share Capital    Retained Earnings  Statements  Through Other         

Code 
   

Number of 
Shares 
 (in thousands)  

 
Amount  

Capital  
Surplus 

 
Legal 

Reserve 
 

Special 
Reserv 

 
Unappropriated 

Earnings 
 

of Foreign 
Operations 

 
Comprehensiv

e Income 
 

Treasury 
Shares 

 Total  
Non-controlling 

Interests 
 Total Equity 

A1  Balance as of January 1, Year 2024     113,761    $1,137,605    $1,232,266    $ 493,635    $ 13,106    $ 586,843   ( $ 18,647 )    $ 3,156   ( $ 31,717 )    $3,416,247    $ 682,543    $ 4,098,790 
                                                               

 
 Appropriation and Distribution of Earnings for 

Year 2023 
 

                       
B1  Statutory Legal Reserve     -     -     -     16,720     -   (  16,720 )     -     -     -     -     -     - 
B3  Special Reserve     -     -     -     -     2,385   (  2,385 )     -     -     -     -     -     - 
B5  Cash Dividends to Shareholders of the Company     -     -     -     -     -   (  169,636 )     -     -     -   (  169,636 )     -   (  169,636) 

                                                               

M1 
 Adjustment to Capital Surplus for Dividends 

Distributed to Subsidiaries 
 

   -     -     423     -     -     -     -     -     -     423     -     423 
                                                               

O1  Cash Dividends to Non-controlling Interests     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   (  65,673 )   (  65,673) 
                                                               

D1 
 Net Income for the Period January 1, 2024 to 

September 30, 2024 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     275,097     -     -     -     275,097     80,847     355,944 
                                                               

D3 
 Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax,for the 

Period January 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     -     2,445     1,163     -     3,608     -     3,608 
                                                               

D5 
 Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 

January 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     275,097     2,445     1,163     -     278,705     80,847     359,552 
                                                               

Z1  Balance as of September 30, 2024     113,761    $1,137,605    $1,232,689    $ 510,355    $ 15,491    $ 673,199   ( $ 16,202 )    $ 4,319   ( $ 31,717 )    $3,525,739    $ 697,717    $ 4,223,456 
                                                               

A1  Balance as of January 1, Year 2025     113,761    $1,137,605    $1,232,689    $ 510,355    $ 15,491    $ 794,266   ( $ 15,260 )    $ 44,252   ( $ 31,717 )    $3,687,681    $ 740,831    $ 4,428,512 
                                                               

 
 Appropriation and Distribution of Earnings for 

Year 2024 
 

                       
B1  Statutory Legal Reserve     -     -     -     39,616     -   (  39,616 )     -     -     -     -     -     - 

B17  Reversal of Special Reserve     -     -     -     -   (  15,491 )     15,491     -     -     -     -     -     - 
B5  Cash Dividends to Shareholders of the Company     -     -     -     -     -   (  282,726 )     -     -     -   (  282,726 )     -   (  282,726) 

                                                               

M1 
 Adjustment to Capital Surplus for Dividends 

Distributed to Subsidiaries 
 

   -     -     704     -     -     -     -     -     -     704     -     704 
                                                               

O1  Cash Dividends to Non-controlling Interests     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   (  109,455 )   (  109,455) 
                                                               

D1 
 Net Income for the Period January 1, 2025 to 

September 30, 2025 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     213,584     -     -     -     213,584     57,782     271,366 
                                                               

D3 
 Other Comprehensive Income, Net of Tax,for the 

Period January 1, 2025 to September 30, 2025 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     -   (  3,805 )   (  26 )     -   (  3,831 )     -   (  3,831) 
                                                               

D5 
 Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 

January 1, 2025 to September 30, 2025 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     213,584   (  3,805 )   (  26 )     -     209,753     57,782     267,535 
                                                               

Z1  Balance as of September 30, 2025     113,761    $1,137,605    $1,233,393    $ 549,971    $ -    $ 700,999   ( $ 19,065 )    $ 44,226   ( $ 31,717 )    $3,615,412    $ 689,158    $ 4,304,570 
The accompanying notes are an in tegral  part  of  these consol idated f inancial  s t atements.  

(Please refer to the rev iew report  of  Deloi t te  & Touche, dated Nov 13,  2025)  
Chai rperson:  Chang, Al ice Manager :  Huang,  Shu -Yuan Chief  Account ing Off icer:  Kung Greg  
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ChenFull Internat ional Company Limited and Subsidiar ies  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

2025&2024.1.1-9.30 

(In Thousands of  New Taiwan Dollars)  

Code    2025.01.01-09.30  2024.01.01-09.30 

  Cash Flows from Operating Activities     
A10000  Profit Before Tax for the Period    $ 329,502    $ 434,846 
A20010  Adjustments for Income and Expense Items     
A20100  Depreciation Expense     102,178     106,123 
A20200  Amortization Expense     6,845     6,345 
A20300  Expected Credit Losses     7,368     715 
A20400  Gain on Financial Assets Measured at Fair 

Value Through Profit or Loss 
 

 (  4,707 )   (  13,372 ) 
A20900  Finance Costs     7,908     8,359 
A23800  Loss on Inventory Obsolescence and 

Write-down 
 

   12,064     6,771 
A21200  Interest Income   (  5,825 )   (  25,314 ) 
A21300  Dividend Income   (  15,838 )   (  8,626 ) 
A22500  Loss (Gain) on Disposal of Property, Plant and 

Equipment 
 

   930   (  4,179 ) 
A23100  Net Gain on Disposal of Financial Assets 

Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 
 

 (  16,314 )   (  7,623 ) 
A29900  Deferred Income Realized   (  36 )   (  36 ) 
A30000  Net Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities     
A31125  Contract Assets     283,279   (  359,539 ) 
A31130  Notes Receivable     7,153     10,156 
A31150  Accounts Receivable   (  522,320 )   (  170,844 ) 
A31200  Inventories   (  68,206 )   (  47,543 ) 
A31230  Prepayments   (  16,307 )   (  46,523 ) 
A31240  Other Current Assets     24   (  333 ) 
A32125  Contract Liabilities     56,335   (  30,703 ) 
A32150  Accounts Payable   (  49,232 )     96,171 
A32180  Other Payables   (  10,596 )   (  3,922 ) 
A32230  Other Current Liabilities     2,901   (  611 ) 
A32240  Net Defined Benefit Liability   (  273 )   (  3,285 ) 
A33000  Cash Generated from Operations     106,833   (  52,967 ) 
A33100  Interest Received     5,930     23,778 
A33300  Interest Paid   (  7,370 )   (  8,138 ) 
A33500  Income Taxes Paid   (  131,421 )   (  53,630 ) 
AAAA  Net Cash Outflow from Operating Activities   (  26,028 )   (  90,957 ) 
             
 

（Next page）  



- 9 - 

（ previous page）  

 
Code    2025.01.01-09.30  2024.01.01-09.30 

  Cash Flows from Investing Activities     
B00010  Acquisition of Financial Assets Measured at 

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive 
Income 

 

 ( $ 39,243 )    $ - 
B00100  Acquisition of Financial Assets Measured at 

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 
 

 (  234,252 )   (  343,335 ) 
B00200  Proceeds from Disposal of Financial Assets 

Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 
 

   224,010     362,901 
B02700  Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment   (  263,385 )   (  486,309 ) 
B02800  Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Plant and 

Equipment 
 

   740     4,494 
B03700  Increase in Refundable Deposits   (  845 )     - 
B03800  Decrease in Refundable Deposits     -     3,670 
B04500  Acquisition of Intangible Assets   (  5,587 )   (  439 ) 
B06500  Increase in Other Financial Assets     -   (  35,128 ) 
B06600  Decrease in Other Financial Assets     1,259     - 
B06700  Increase in Other Non-current Assets   (  27,829 )   (  1,469 ) 
B07600  Dividends Received     15,838     8,626 
BBBB  Net Cash Outflow from Investing Activities   (  329,294 )   (  486,989 ) 
             
  Cash Flows from Financing Activities     
C00100  Increase in Short-term Borrowings     1,575,000     3,014,000 
C00200  Decrease in Short-term Borrowings   (  1,120,000 )   (  2,156,000 ) 
C00500  Increase in Short-term Notes Payable     -     40,000 
C00600  Decrease in Short-term Notes Payable     -   (  40,000 ) 
C01600  Proceeds from Long-term Borrowings     122,340     - 
C03100  Refund of Deposits Received   (  189 )   (  60 ) 
C04020  Repayment of Lease Liabilities (Principal 

Portion) 
 

 (  4,222 )   (  4,091 ) 
C04500  Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders of the 

Company 
 

 (  282,022 )   (  169,213 ) 
C05800  Cash Dividends Paid to Non-controlling 

Interests 
 

 (  109,455 )   (  65,673 ) 
CCCC  Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities     181,452     618,963 
             
DDDD  Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and 

Cash Equivalents 
 

 (  4,872 )     3,047 
             
EEEE  Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash 

Equivalents 
 

 (  178,742 )     44,064 
             
E00100  Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the 

Period 
 

   452,822     980,987 
             
E00200  Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the 

Period 
 

  $ 274,080    $ 1,025,051 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of  these  

consol idated f inancial statements.  

(Please refer to the review report of  Deloit te & Touche, dated Nov 13, 2025)  

Chairperson: Chang, Al ice Manager: Huang, Shu -Yuan 

 Chief  Accounting Off icer: Kung Greg  
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ChenFull International Company Limited and Subsidiaries 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2025 AND 2024  

(Amounts in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specif ied 

Otherwise) 

(1)  Company History 

ChenFull International Co., Ltd. ( the “Company”) was established in 

Apri l 1982. ChenFull ’s business scope includes semiconductor 

control equipment system engineering; buying, sel l ing, designing, 

manufacturing, and constructing cleanroom, ultrapure water 

equipment pipelines, and various chemical engineering equipment; 

manufacturing and trading of various hydraulic, mechanical parts, 

factory engineering pipeline materials, and precision molds; design 

planning of machinery and equipment for entire shoe factories and 

the manufacturing, processing, and trading of related material 

products; as well as the manufacturing and trading of various aircraft 

equipment.  

ChenFull ’s stock has been listed and traded on the Taipei Exchange 

(TPEx) since September 2004.  

This consolidated f inancial report is expressed in New Taiwan 

Dollars as the functional currency. 

 (2) Date and Process of Financial Statements Approval  

  The accompanying consolidated f inancial statements were 

reported to the Board of Directors on November 13, 2025, and 

subsequently issued.  

 (3)  Adoption of New and Amended Standards and Interpretations  

 (1) Init ial Adoption of International Financial Report ing Standards 

(IFRSs), International Accounting Standards (IASs), 

Interpretat ions (IFRICs), and Interpretations Bulletins (SICs) as 

Endorsed and Issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission 

(the “FSC”) 

Amendments to IAS 21, “Lack of Exchangeability ” 

 

The application of the amendments to IAS 21, “Lack of 

Exchangeabil ity,” does not result in any signif icant changes to the 

Company’s accounting policies.  
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 (2) IFRS Accounting Standards Endorsed by the Financial 

Supervisory Commission Applicable in 2026  

Newly Issued / Amended / Revised Standards 
and Interpretations 

 IASB effective  
date of issuance 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, 
“Amendments to the Classification and 
Measurement of Financial Instruments” 

 
2026.1.1 

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7, “Contracts 
Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity” 

 
2026.1.1 

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting 
Standards – Volume 11 

 
2026.1.1 

IFRS 17, “Insurance Contracts” (including 
amendments issued in 2020 and 2021) 

 
2023.1.1 

 

  As of the date of authorization for issue of these consolidated 

f inancial statements, the Group is st i l l in the process of assessing 

the impact of the above amendments on its f inancial position and 

f inancial performance. The related impacts will  be discl osed when 

the assessment is completed.  

 (3) IFRS Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB but Not Yet 

Endorsed and Effective by the Financial Supervisory Commission 

(FSC) 

Newly Issued / Amended / Revised Standards 
and Interpretations 

 Effective Date Issued by 
IASB (Note 1) 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: “Sale or 
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and 
its Associate or Joint Venture” 

 
To Be Determined 

IFRS 18: “Presentation and Disclosure in 
Financial Statements” 

 
January 1, 2027 (Note 2) 

IFRS 19: “Subsidiaries without Public 
Accountability: Disclosures” (including 2025 
Amendments) 

 
1-Jan-27 

 

Note 1: Unless otherwise stated, the newly issued, amended, or  

revised standards or interpretat ions above are effective 

for annual reporting periods beginn ing on or after the 

respective dates.  

 

Note 2: On September 25, 2025, the Financial Supervisory  

            Commission (FSC) announced that companies in Taiwan    

            are required to apply IFRS 18 start ing January 1, 2028.  

            Early adopt ion is permitted once IFRS 18 is endorsed by  

            the FSC. 
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IFRS 18 “Presentat ion and Disclosure in Financial Statements”  

  IFRS 18 wil l  replace IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial 

Statements.” The main changes introduced by this standard 

include: 

˙ The income statement should classify revenue and expense 

items into operating, investing, f inancing, income tax, and 

discontinued operations categories.  

˙ The income statement should present operating prof it,  prof it  

before f inancing and income tax, subtotals, and totals of prof it 

or loss.  

˙ Guidance is provided to strengthen aggregation and 

disaggregation rules: the consolidated entit y must identify 

assets, l iabi l it ies, equity, revenue, expenses, and cash f lows 

arising from individual transactions or other events, and classify 

and aggregate them based on shared characteristics, so that 

each line item presented in the primary f inancial statements has 

at least one similar characterist ic. Items with different 

characteristics should be disaggregated in the primary f inancial 

statements and notes. The consolidated entity should only label 

items as “other” if  no more informative description ca n be found. 

˙ Disclosure of management-defined performance measures: 

When the consolidated entity engages in public communication 

outside the f inancial statements or communicates with f inancial 

statement users about management’s view on a part icular 

aspect of the company’s overall  f inancial performance, a single 

note to the f inancial statements should disclose information 

about management-defined performance measures. This 

includes the description of the measure, how it is calculated, its 

reconcil iation to subtotals or totals prescribed by IFRS, and the 

impact of related adjustments on income tax and non -control l ing 

interests.  

Except for the impacts described above, as of the date this 

consolidated f inancial report was authorized for issue, the 

consolidated entity is st i l l evaluating the other effects of the 

amendments to the standards and interpretat ions on its 
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f inancial position and f inancial performance. The related 

impacts will  be disclosed once the evaluation is completed .  

 4、  Summary of Signif icant Accounting Policies 

  (1) Statement of Compliance 

  This consolidated f inancial report has been prepared in 

accordance with the Regulat ions Governing the Preparation of 

Financial Reports by Securit ies Issuers and IAS 34 “Interim 

Financial Report ing”, as endorsed and made effective by the 

Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC). This consolidated 

f inancial report does not include all  the disclosure information 

required by the full  annual f inancial statements under IFRS.  

  (2) Basis of Preparation 

  Except for f inancial instruments measured at fair value and 

net defined benefit l iabil it ies recognized as the present value of 

defined benefit obligat ions less the fair value of plan assets, these 

consolidated f inancial statements have been prepared on a 

historical cost basis. 

Fair value measurements are categorized into Levels 1 to 3 based 

on the observabil ity and signif icance of the inputs used in the 

valuation.  

 1. Level 1 inputs: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets 

for identical assets or l iabil it ies that are accessible at the 

measurement date.  

 2. Level 2 inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included 

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or l iabi l ity, 

either directly ( i.e., prices) or indirectly (i .e., derived from 

prices).  

3. Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or l iabi l i ty. 

(3) Basis of Consolidation 

  These consolidated f inancial statements comprise the 

f inancial statements of the Company and the entit ies control led by 

the Company (subsidiaries). The consolidated statement of 

comprehensive income includes the operating resu lts of  

subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the current period 

from the acquisit ion date or up to the disposal date, as appropriate. 

The f inancial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted to 

ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the 
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consolidated entity. In preparing the consolidated f inancial 

statements, all intercompany transactions, account balances, 

income, and expenses have been eliminated in full. Total 

comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attr ibuted to the owners 

of the Company and to non-controll ing interests, even if  this 

results in non-controll ing interests having a deficit balance.  

  Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary that do not 

result in a loss of control by the consolidated entity are accounted 

for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the 

consolidated entity’s interests and non-control l ing interests are 

adjusted to ref lect changes in their relative interests in the 

subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the 

non-control l ing interests are adjusted and the fair value of the 

consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equity and 

attributed to the owners of the Company.  

  Details of subsidiaries, shareholding percentages, and 

principal business activit ies are disclosed in Note 11, Schedule 2, 

and Schedule 3. 

  (4) Other Signif icant Accounting Policies  

Except as described below, please refer to the summary of 

signif icant accounting policies in the consolidated f inancial 

statements for the year ended 2024.  

 1. Defined Benefit Post-employment Benefits 

  Pension cost for interim periods is calculated using the 

pension cost rate determined by actuarial valuation as of the 

end of the preceding year and applied on a year -to-date basis. 

Adjustments are made for signif icant market f luctuations 

during the current period, as well as for signif icant plan 

amendments, settlements, curtai lments, or other signif icant 

non-recurring events occurring during the period.  

 2. Income Tax Expense 

  Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred 

tax. Income taxes for interim periods are assessed on an 

annual basis and calculated by applying the tax rate expected 

to be applicable to the estimated annual total earnings to the 

interim pre-tax income. 
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 5、  Signif icant Accounting Judgments, Estimates, and Key Sources of 

Estimation Uncertainty 

  In applying accounting policies, the consolidated entity is 

required to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions based on 

historical experience and other relevant factors when relevant 

information cannot be readily obtained from other sources. Actual 

results may differ from these estimates.  

  In developing accounting est imates, the consolidated entity 

considers the potential effects of inf lation, f luctuation s in market 

interest rates, and possible impacts of reciprocal tariff measures 

imposed by the United States when estimating cash f lows, growth 

rates, discount rates, prof itabil ity, and other related assumptions. 

Management will continue to review the estimates and underlying 

assumptions.  

  Based on the assessment by the Company’s management, the 

accounting policies, estimates, and underlying assumptions adopted 

by the consolidated entity do not involve signif icant accounting 

judgments, estimates, or key sources of estimation uncertainty.  
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 6、  Cash and cash equivalents  

 
 2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Cash on hand and 
revolving funds 

 
  $ 551    $ 682    $ 703 

Bank checks and demand 
deposits 

 
   112,910     270,433     621,383 

Cash equivalents        
(investments with original 
maturities of three months 
or less) include: 

 

   94,349     98,339     94,950 
Bank time deposits     -     -     221,550 
Repurchase agreements       
Discretionary investment 
accounts: 

 
   66,270     83,368     86,465 

    $ 274,080    $ 452,822    $1,025,051 

 

  The consolidated entity has entered into a discretionary asset 

management agreement with Time Securit ies Investment Advisory 

Co., Ltd. As of September 30, 2025, December 31, 2024, and 

September 30, 2024, bank deposits held in the discret ionary 

investment accounts amounted to NT$66,270 thousand, NT$83,368 

thousand, and NT$86,465 thousand, respectively.  

  The interest rate ranges of bank deposits, t ime deposits, and 

repurchase agreements as of the balance sheet date are as follows:  

 
 2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Bank deposits  0.55%～0.70%  0.65%～4.30%  0.635%～4.5% 

Time deposits  4.00%  4.35%  1.69%~5.52% 
Repurchase agreements  -  -  5.25% 
 

 7、  Financial instruments measured at fair value through prof it or loss 

(FVTPL)  

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Financial Assets – Current       
Mandatorily measured at fair value 
through profit or loss       
Non-derivative financial assets       

－ Domestic listed (OTC-listed) 

stocks    $ 53,346    $ 58,188    $ 55,587 

－ Fund beneficiary certificates     109,431     73,326     74,893 
    $162,777    $131,514    $130,480 
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 8 、 Financial assets measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income (FVOCI)  

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Non-current       

Domestic investments       

Emerging stock market 
(ESM) shares 

 
     

  Common shares    $ 70,855    $ 1,726    $ 1,452 
Unlisted (non-OTC) stocks                

  Common shares     90,810     150,722     30,857 

Limited partnerships     30,000     -     - 

    $191,665    $152,448    $ 32,309 

 

  The consolidated entity has invested in the above investment 

targets for medium- to long-term strategic purposes and expects to 

generate returns through long-term investment. Management of the 

consolidated entity considers that recognizing short -term fair value 

f luctuations of these investments in prof it or loss would not be 

consistent with the aforementioned long-term investment strategy. 

Accordingly, the consolidated entity has elected to designate these 

investments as measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income. 

 9、  Notes receivable, Accounts Receivable, other receivables, and 

overdue receivables  

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Notes receivable       
Measured at amortized 
cost       
Gross carrying amount    $ 7,839    $ 14,992    $ 4,166 
Less: allowance for credit 
losses   (  271 )   (  271 )   (  271 ) 
    $ 7,568    $ 14,721    $ 3,895 

 
（Next page）  
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  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Accounts Receivable       
Measured at amortized 
cost       
Gross carrying amount    $1,098,629    $ 574,679    $ 522,139 
Less: allowance for credit 
losses   (  30,079 )   (  21,197 )   (  15,098 ) 
    $1,068,550    $ 553,482    $ 507,041 
       
Other receivables       
Others    $ 10,078    $ 10,787    $ 11,221 
       
Overdue receivables       
Measured at amortized 
cost 

 
     

Gross carrying amount    $ 2,595    $ 4,225    $ 4,795 
Less: allowance for 
doubtful debts 

 
 (  2,595 )   (  4,225 )   (  4,795 ) 

    $ -    $ -    $ - 

 (1) Notes receivable  

2025.9.30 

  
Not past  

due 
 

Past due  
1–90 days 

 Total 

Expected credit loss rate     3.46%  -      

Gross carrying amount    $ 7,839    $ -    $ 7,839 

Allowance for credit 
losses (lifetime expected 
credit losses)   (  271 )     -   (  271 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 7,568    $ -    $ 7,568 

 

2024.12.31 

  
Not past  

due 
 

Past due  
1–90 days 

 Total 

Expected credit loss rate  1.81%  -   
Gross carrying amount    $ 14,992    $ -    $ 14,992 
Allowance for credit 
losses (lifetime expected 
credit losses) 

 

 (  271 )     - 

 

 (  271 ) 
Amortized cost    $ 14,721    $ -    $ 14,721 
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2024.9.30 

  
Not past  

due 
 

Past due  
1–90 days 

 Total 

Expected credit loss rate     6.51%  -      

Gross carrying amount    $ 4,166    $ -    $ 4,166 

Allowance for credit 
losses (lifetime expected 
credit losses)   (  271 )     -   (  271 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 3,895    $ -    $ 3,895 

 

  The allowance for credit losses on notes receivable did not 

change during the year 2025 and the period from January 1, 2024, 

to September 30, 2024.  

 (2)  Accounts Receivable 

Accounts Receivable measured at amortized cost  

  The consolidated entity’s average credit term for sales of  

goods is 60 days from the invoice date. When assessing the 

recoverability of Account Receivables, the consol idated entity 

considers any changes in the credit quality of the receivables from 

the original grant of credit to the balance sheet date.  

 

To mitigate credit risk, management has assigned a dedicated 

team responsible for determining credit l imits, approvin g credit ,  

and performing other monitoring procedures to ensure that 

appropriate act ions are taken for overdue receivables. In addition, 

the consolidated entity reviews the recoverable amount of 

receivables individually at the balance sheet date to ensure t hat 

any unrecoverable receivables have been appropriately impaired. 

Based on this, management believes that the consolidated entity’s 

credit r isk has been signif icantly reduced.  

 

The consolidated entity recognizes an al lowance for Accounts 

Receivable based on lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime 

expected credit losses are calculated using a provision matrix, 

which considers the customer ’s past default history, current 

f inancial condition, and the economic environment of the industry. 

Historical experience indicates that loss patterns do not differ 

signif icantly across different customer groups; therefore, the 

provision matrix is not further segmented by customer group and 
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only sets expected credit loss rates according to the aging of 

Accounts Receivable. 

 

If  there is evidence that a counterparty is experiencing severe 

f inancial diff icult ies and the consolidated entity cannot reasonably 

expect to recover the receivable—such as when the counterparty 

is undergoing l iquidation—the relevant trade receivable i s written 

off  directly. However, collection efforts continue, and any amounts 

recovered are recognized in prof it or loss.  

 

  The consolidated entity measures the al lowance for trade 

receivables based on the provision matrix as follows:  

2025.9.30 

  
Not past due  

Past due 
1–90 days 

 
Past due 

91–180 days 
 

Past due 
181–270 days 

 
Past due over 

270 days 
 Total 

Expected credit 
loss rate 

 

0.15%~0.88%  1.42%~5%  1%~52.76%  1%~91.81%  100%   

Gross carrying 
amount 

 

  $ 1,024,593    $ 53,332    $ 1,575    $ 15,616    $ 3,513    $ 1,098,629 

Allowance for 
credit losses 
(lifetime expected 
credit losses) 

 

 (  9,048 )   (  2,349 )   (  831 )   (  14,338 )   (  3,513 )   (  30,079 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 1,015,545     $ 50,983    $ 744    $ 1,278    $ -    $ 1,068,550 

 

2024.12.31 

  
Not past due  

Past due 
1–90 days 

 
Past due 

91–180 days 
 

Past due 
181–270 days 

 
Past due over 

270 days 
 Total 

Expected credit 
loss rate 

 

0.43%~0.8%  0.43%~5%  9.5%~57.97%  50%~89.78%  100%   

Gross carrying 
amount 

 

  $ 540,329    $ 13,195    $ 7,900    $ 12,599    $ 656    $ 574,679 

Allowance for 
credit losses 
(lifetime expected 
credit losses) 

 

 (  4,303 )   (  400 )   (  4,571 )   (  11,267 )   (  656 )   (  21,197 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 536,026     $ 12,795    $ 3,329    $ 1,332    $ -    $ 553,482 
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2024.9.30 

  
Not past due  

Past due 
1–90 days 

 
Past due 

91–180 days 
 

Past due 
181–270 days 

 
Past due over 

270 days 
 Total 

Expected credit 
loss rate 

 

0.49%~0.8%  0.49%~5%  
6.99%~60.66

%  
41.67%~89.78

%  100%   

Gross carrying 
amount 

 

  $ 482,066    $ 23,990    $ 12,721    $ 656    $ 2,706    $ 522,139 

Allowance for 
credit losses 
(lifetime expected 
credit losses) 

 

 (  3,848 )   (  305 )   (  7,657 )   (  582 )   (  2,706 )   (  15,098 ) 

Amortized cost    $ 478,218    $ 23,685    $ 5,064    $ 74    $ -    $ 507,041 

 

  The movements in the allowance for trade receivables are as 

follows: 

  

2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Beginning balance    $ 21,197    $ 6,442 
Add: Impairment losses 
recognized in the period 

 
   23,849     14,778 

Less: Reversal of 
impairment losses in the 
period 

 

 (  1,171 )     - 
Less: Reclassifications in the 
period 

 
 (  13,739 )   (  6,132 ) 

Foreign exchange 
differences 

 
 (  57 )     10  

Ending balance    $ 30,079    $ 15,098 
 

  The movements in the al lowance for overdue receivab les are 

as follows:  

  

2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Beginning balance    $ 4,225    $ 12,726 
Add: Impairment losses 
recognized in the period 

 
   13,739     6,132 

Less: Reversal of 
impairment losses in the 
period 

 

 (  15,310 )   (  14,063 ) 
Less: Reclassifications in the 
period 

 
 (  59 )     -  

Foreign exchange 
differences 

 
  $ 2,595    $ 4,795 
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 10、  Inventory 

 
 2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Raw materials    $188,810    $166,908    $219,910 
Work in progress     394,716     385,104     342,253 
Finished goods     137,601     112,898     90,713 
Merchandise inventory     78     153     2,797 
    $721,205    $665,063    $655,673 
 

  The nature of cost of goods sold is as follows:  

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Cost of goods sold    $ 432,386    $ 315,047    $ 1,159,609    $ 914,866 

Inventory 
write-downs and 
obsolescence 
(reversal gains)   (  1,208 )     4,356     12,064     6,771 

Others   (  6,444 )   (  7,328 )   (  21,980 )   (  24,408 ) 

    $ 424,734    $ 312,075    $ 1,149,693    $ 897,229 

 

  The reversal of inventory to net realizable value is due  to an 

increase in the sell ing prices of certain inventories.  

11、  Subsidiaries 

 (1) Subsidiaries included in the consolidated f inancial statements  

  The entit ies included in the preparation of these consolidated  

f inancial statements are as follows:  

    Percentage of Ownership   

Name of Investing 
Company 

 Name of Subsidiary  
2025. 
9.30 

 
2024. 
12.31 

 
2024. 
9.30 

 
Descri
ption 

ChenFull International 
CO., LTD. 

 

ChenFeng Machinery 
 Co., Ltd. 

（Hereinafter referred to 

as ChenFeng Co） 

 100%  100%  100%  - 

  

ChenFull Precision  
CO., LTD. 

（Hereinafter referred to 

as ChenFull Precision） 

 63%  63%  63%  Note 

  
CHEN FULL  

HOLDING CO., LTD. 
 100%  100%  100%  - 

CHEN FULL 
HOLDING CO., 

LTD. 
 

NEW OPPORTUNITY 
LIMITED 

 100%  100%  100%  - 

NEW OPPORTUNITY 
LIMITED 

 

ChenFeng Machinery 
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. 

(Hereinafter referred to as 
ChenFeng 

(Dongguan) Co) 

 100%  100%  100%  - 

 

Note: This is a signif icant subsidiary, and its f inancial statements 

have been reviewed by certif ied accountants.  

 (2) Information on subsidiaries with signif icant non-control l ing 

interests.  
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O wnersh ip  and  Vo t ing  R igh ts  He ld  by 
N o n - c o n t r o l l i n g  I n t e r e s t s 

S u b s i d i a r y  N a m e  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

ChenFull Precision  37%  37%  37% 

 

  For information on the principal place of business and the 

country of incorporation, please refer to Schedule 2. 

  Profit or Loss Attributable to Non-controlling Interests 

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Subsidiary Name         

ChenFull Precision Co    $ 22,569    $ 18,463    $ 57,782    $ 80,847 

 

  Non-controlling Interests 

Subsidiary Name  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

ChenFull Precision Co    $689,158    $740,831    $697,717 
 

  The following summarized f inancial information of ChenFul l 

Precision Co is presented before el imination of intercompany 

transactions.  

ChenFull Precision Co 

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Current Assets    $1,080,167    $1,105,519    $1,500,345 
Non-current Assets     1,857,489     1,593,340     1,520,339 
Current Liabilities   (  775,514 )   (  513,364 )   (  1,020,961 ) 
Non-current Liabilities   (  299,422 )   (  183,111 )   (  113,872 ) 
Equity    $1,862,720    $2,002,384    $1,885,851 
       
Equity Attributable to:       
  Owners of the 
Company 

 
  $1,173,562    $1,261,553    $1,188,134 

  Non-controlling 
Interests of ChenFull 
Precision Co 

 

   689,158     740,831     697,717 
    $1,862,720    $2,002,384    $1,885,851 
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2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Revenue    $1,304,854    $1,066,942 
     
Profit for the Period    $ 156,181    $ 218,521 
Other Comprehensive 
Income     -     - 
Total Comprehensive 
Income    $ 156,181    $ 218,521 
     
Profit Attributable to:     
  Owners of the Company    $ 98,399    $ 137,674 
  Non-controlling 
Interests of ChenFull 
Precision Co 

 

   57,782     80,847 
    $ 156,181    $ 218,521 
     

 

  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Total Comprehensive 
Income Attributable to: 

 
   

  Owners of the Company    $ 98,399    $ 137,674 
  Non-controlling 
Interests of ChenFull 
Precision Co 

 

   57,782     80,847 
    $ 156,181    $ 218,521 
     
Cash Flows     
  Operating Activities    $ 43,285    $ 198,916 
  Investing Activities   (  278,967 )   (  516,362 ) 
  Financing Activities     102,273      506,402  
Net Cash (Outflow)/Inflow   ( $ 133,409 )    $ 188,956  
 

12、  Property, Plant and Equipment  

  
Land  Buildings  

Machinery 
and 

Equipment 
 

Other 
Equipment 

 
Construction 
in Progress 

 Total 

Cost             

Balance at 
January 1, 2025    $1,113,104    $1,105,994    $1,084,708    $ 340,216    $ 103,849    $3,747,871 

Additions     10,468     2,215     7,642     9,673     306,038     336,036 

Disposals     -   (  2,088 )   (  3,740 )   (  406 )     -   (  6,234 ) 

Reclassifications     84,720     -     4,882     265     -     89,867 

Net Exchange 
Differences     -     -   (  36 )   (  51 )     -   (  87 ) 

Balance at 
September 30, 
2025    $1,208,292    $1,106,121    $1,093,456    $ 349,697    $ 409,887    $4,167,453 

             

Accumulated 
Depreciation and 
Impairment             

Balance at    $ -    $ 467,061    $ 862,609    $ 285,037    $ -    $1,614,707 
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January 1, 2025 
Disposals     -   (  661 )   (  3,547 )   (  356 )     -   (  4,564 ) 

Depreciation 
Expense     -     29,737     47,108     17,575     -     94,420 

Net Exchange 
Differences     -     -   (  37 )   (  50 )     -   (  87 ) 

Balance at 
September 30, 
2025    $ -    $ 496,137    $ 906,133    $ 302,206    $ -    $1,704,476 

             

Net Book Value 
at September 
30, 2025    $1,208,292    $ 609,984    $ 187,323    $ 47,491    $ 409,887    $2,462,977 

             

Net Book Value 
at December 31, 
2024    $1,113,104    $ 638,933    $ 222,099    $ 55,179    $ 103,849    $2,133,164 

 January 1, 
2025             

             

Cost    $ 531,576    $1,104,140    $1,099,251    $ 338,148    $ 890    $3,074,005 

Balance at 
January 1, 2024     466,387     1,064     4,373     3,061     7,426     482,311 

Additions     -     -   (  22,738 )   (  3,030 )     -   (  25,768 ) 

Disposals     115,141     -     3,150     -     -     118,291 

Reclassifications     -     -     25     34     -     59 

Net Exchange 
Differences    $1,113,104    $1,105,204    $1,084,061    $ 338,213    $ 8,316    $3,648,898 

Balance at 
September 30, 
2024             

             

Accumulated 
Depreciation and 
Impairment    $ -    $ 426,167    $ 820,750    $ 263,884    $ -    $1,510,801 

Balance at 
January 1, 2024     -     -   (  22,423 )   (  3,030 )     -   (  25,453 ) 

Disposals     -     30,958     48,476     18,918     -     98,352 

Depreciation 
Expense     -     -     19     20     -     39 

Net Exchange 
Differences    $ -    $ 457,125    $ 846,822    $ 279,792    $ -    $1,583,739 

Balance at 
September 30, 
2024             

    $1,113,104    $ 648,079    $ 237,239    $ 58,421    $ 8,316    $2,065,159 
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  The consolidated company’s ChenFull International Co acquired 

farmland located at Taoyuan City, Dayuan District, Changfa Section, 

land numbers 0497, 0499, and 0500, with a total area of 5,639.26 ㎡ , 

for the purpose of plant expansion and operations. The c ost of the 

land recorded as Land amounted to NT$234,699 thousand. Due to 

regulatory restrictions, ChenFull International Co is not yet 

permitted to register ownership of farmland. Accordingly, on March 3, 

2023, ChenFull International Co entered into a borrowed-name 

registrat ion agreement with an employee holding the status of a 

self-cult ivating farmer, whereby the employee acted as the 

purchaser of the farmland. The agreement stipulates that the legal 

ownership of the land belongs to ChenFull International Co. 

Moreover, the pre-registration of ownership of the land is f i led in the 

name of ChenFull International Co, and the employee may not 

dispose of the land in any manner without the consent of ChenFull 

International Co.  

 

The consolidated company’s ChenFull  Precision Co acquired land 

located at Puzi City, Xinzhuang Section, land number 0035 -0008, 

also for the purpose of plant expansion and operations. The cost of 

the land recorded as Land amounted to NT$581,528 thousand. The 

pre-registrat ion of ownership of the land has been f i led with the 

Chiayi County Government.  

  Depreciat ion is calculated on a straight -line basis over the 

following useful l ives：  

Buildings  
   Main Factory Buildings  5–56 Years 

  Electrical Works  20–21 Years 
  Plumbing and Drainage 
Systems 

 10–11 Years 

  Air Conditioning Systems  7–9 Years 
  Other  2–21 Years 
Machinery and Equipment  2–11 Years 
Other Equipment  2–11 Years 

 

  No impairment losses were recognized or reversed during the 

year 2025 and the period from January 1 to September 30, 2024. 
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13、Leases  

 (1) Right-of-Use Assets 

 
 2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Carrying Amount of 
Right-of-Use Assets 

 
     

Land    $102,136    $107,158    $108,833 
 

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Depreciation 
Expense of 
Right-of-Use 
Assets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Land    $ 1,674    $ 1,674    $ 5,022    $ 5,035 

 

  Apart from the depreciat ion expense recognized above, the 

consolidated company’s right -of-use assets did not experience 

any signif icant subleases or impairment  during the year 2025 and 

the period from January 1 to September 30, 2024.  

 (2) Lease liabil it ies 

 
 2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Lease Liabilities -   
Carrying Amount 

 
     

Current    $ 5,784    $ 5,651    $ 5,607 
Non-Current    $105,443    $109,798    $111,228 
 

  The discount rate range for lease liabil it ies is as follows：  

 
 2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Land  3.126%  3.126%  3.126% 
 

 (3) Signif icant Lease Activit ies and Terms  

  The consolidated company leases land for use as a factory. 

The original lease term was from October 2020 to December 2028. 

The lease payments under the above lease were adjusted and 

increased starting from January 2024. Under the new lease 

agreement, the lease term is from January 2024 to December 

2040. For the land located in the Republic of China (Taiwan), the 

lessor is entit led to adjust the lease payments in accordance with 

applicable laws and regulat ions.  
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 (4) Other lease information  

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Short-term Lease 
Expenses    $ 3,072    $ 2,509    $ 9,733    $ 7,173 

Low-value Asset 
Lease Expenses    $ 395    $ 432    $ 1,137    $ 1,316 

Total Cash 
Outflows from 
Leases       ( $ 17,755 )   ( $ 15,372 ) 

 

  The consolidated company has elected to apply the 

recognit ion exemptions for leases that qualify as short -term 

leases and leases of low-value assets. No right-of-use assets or 

lease l iabi l it ies are recognized for these leases.。  

14、 Investment Property 

  
Completed Investment 

Property 

Cost   
Balance at 2025.1.1  $ 335,715 
Balance at 2025.9.30  $ 335,715 
   

 

  

Completed 
Investment 

Property 

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment   
Balance at January 1, 2025    $ 23,539 
Depreciation Expense     2,736 
Balance at September 30, 2025    $ 26,275 
   
Net Book Value at September 30, 2025    $309,440 
   
Net Book Value at December 31, 2024 / 
January 1, 2025    $312,176 
   
Cost   
Balance at January 1, 2024    $335,715 
Balance at September 30, 2024    $335,715 
   
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment   
Balance at January 1, 2024    $ 19,891 
Depreciation Expense     2,736 
Balance at September 30, 2024    $ 22,627 
   
Net Book Value at September 30, 2024    $313,088 
 

  The lease term for investment propert ies held for lease ranges 

from 1 to 2 years. The lessee does not have any preferential 
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purchase rights over the investment propert ies at the end of the 

lease term. 

The total future lease payments to be received from operating leases 

of investment properties are as follows:  

 
 2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Year 1    $ 2,410    $ 3,028    $ 4,337 
Year 2     1,785     -     537 
    $ 4,195    $ 3,028    $ 4,874 
 

  Depreciat ion is calculated on a straight-line basis over the 

following useful l ives：  

Main Building  20 Years 
 

  The fair value of investment properties as of September 30, 

2025, amounted to NT$370,105 thousand. This fair value has not 

been determined by an independent appraiser and was assessed by 

the management of the consolidated company with reference to 

market prices of similar properties in nearby areas.  
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15、  Intangible Assets 

  
Computer 

Software Costs 

Cost   
Balance at January 1, 2025    $ 41,054 
Additions     5,587 
Balance at September 30, 2025    $ 46,641 
   
Accumulated Amortization and Impairment   
Balance at January 1, 2025    $ 25,167 
Amortization Expense     6,845 
Balance at September 30, 2025    $ 32,012 
   
Net Book Value at September 30, 2025    $ 14,629 
   
Net Book Value at December 31, 2024 / 
January 1, 2025    $ 15,887 
   
Cost   
Balance at January 1, 2024    $ 39,176 
Additions     439 
Disposals   (  1,185 ) 
Balance at September 30, 2024    $ 38,430 
   
Accumulated Amortization and Impairment   
Balance at January 1, 2024    $ 17,730 
Amortization Expense     6,345 
Disposals   (  1,185 ) 
Balance at September 30, 2024    $ 22,890 
   
Net Book Value at September 30, 2024    $ 15,540 

 

  Apart from the amortizat ion expense recognized, the company’s 

intangible assets did not incur any signif icant disposals or 

impairment during the year 2025 and the period from January 1 to 

September 30, 2024. 

  Amortization is calculated on a straight -l ine basis over the 

following useful l ives:  

Computer Software Costs  1-5 Years 

 

  Amortization Expense by Function：  

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Cost of Revenue /  
Cost of Sales 

 
  $ 479 

 
  $ 632    $ 1,434 

 
  $ 1,948 

Operating Expenses     1,661     1,443     5,411     4,397 
    $ 2,140    $ 2,075    $ 6,845    $ 6,345 
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16、  Other Assets 

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 
Current       
Prepayments       
Prepaid Goods    $ 36,420    $ 24,514    $ 54,032 
Others     8,699     4,298     6,343 
    $ 45,119    $ 28,812    $ 60,375 
Other Financial Assets – 
Current       
Time Deposits with Original 
Maturity Over Three Months 
(Note 30)    $ 17,001    $ 18,262    $ 17,569 
Pledged Time Deposits 
(Note 30)     9,048     9,046     9,046 
    $ 26,049    $ 27,308    $ 26,615 
Other Current Assets       
Temporary Payments    $ 7,210    $ 6,532    $ 6,643 
Payments on Behalf of Others     4,025     4,025     4,025 
Employee Advances     -     98     33 
    $ 11,235    $ 10,655    $ 10,701 

       
Non-current       
Other Financial Assets – 
Non-current       
Pledged Time Deposits (Note 
30)    $ 34,543    $ 34,543    $ 34,543 
       
Other Non-current Assets       
Other Receivables (Note 2)       
Other Receivables    $ 73,948    $ 73,948    $ 73,948 
Less: Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts   (  73,948 )   (  73,948 )   (  73,948 ) 
Prepaid Equipment     27,893     89,931     86,183 
Land Pending Transfer  
(Note 3)     1,114     1,114     1,114 
Deposits Paid     3,909     3,064     3,708 
    $ 32,916    $ 94,109    $ 91,005 

 (1) As of September 30, 2025, and December 31 and September 30, 

2024, the annual interest rates of t ime deposits with original 

maturit ies over three months and pledged time deposits ranged as 

follows: 0.665%–2.55%, 0.54%–3.85%, and 0.54%–3.85%, 

respective ly. 

 (2) Other Non-current Receivables 

  The consolidated company’s ChenFull International Co 

undertook a subcontracted project from HaoHan Zhongxiao 

Engineering Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as "HaoHan 

Company"). Due to disputes regarding contract in terpretation, 

payment, and deduction amounts, ChenFull International Co f i led 

a claim against HaoHan Company for NT$110,821 thousand. 
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Subsequently, as of September 30, 2011, except for NT$7,368 

thousand which remained under l it igation, the remaining port io n 

was settled with HaoHan Company paying NT$92,499 thousand to 

ChenFull International Co (comprising NT$84,851 thousand of 

contract receivables and performance bonds and NT$7,648 

thousand of l it igation-related costs), recorded under other 

non-current assets, and formalized by a notarized settlement 

agreement. 

 

The High Court, on March 25, 2014, ruled that HaoHan Company 

should pay ChenFull International Co NT$9,383 thousand plus 

interest, with the court issuing a creditor cert if icate on July 25, 

2014. Since HaoHan Company did not make the payment 

according to the settlement terms, ChenFull International Co has 

f i led for enforcement with the court.  

 

In addition, ChenFull International Co f i led a claim against the 

former responsible person of HaoHan Company, Mr. Chen Shuitu, 

for NT$92,499 thousand under endorsement l iabi l i ty, and obtained 

a f inal favorable judgment with a court -issued creditor certif icate.  

Through court -enforced collect ion, NT$10,903 thousand has been 

recovered.  

 

ChenFull International Co has recognized a 100% allowance for 

doubtful accounts on the remaining net amount of NT$73,948 

thousand claimed from HaoHan Company.  

 (3) Land Pending Transfer 

  The consolidated company, for the purpose of plant 

expansion and operations, acquired farmland located at No. 

1065-0086 and 0015, Xucuogang, Dayuan Township, Taoyuan 

County, with a total area of 6,454 ㎡ , recorded at a cost of 

NT$25,120 thousand. Due to regulatory restrict ions, ChenFull 

International Co is not yet permitted to register ownership of  

farmland. Accordingly, ChenFull International Co (hereinafter 

referred to as "Party A") entered into an agreement on October 21, 

2002, with Mr. Xu Zhihong, former chairman of ChenFul l 

International Co (hereinafter referred to as "Party B"), who holds 
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the status of a self -cult ivating farmer. Under the agreement, Party 

B acted on behalf of Party A to acquire the farmland, and the 

transfer procedures were completed on November 5, 2002.  

 

The agreement stipulates that the legal ownership of the land 

belongs to Party A. Party B unconditionally waived any claims to 

the land and agreed to provide all  documents necessary for 

transfer once the relevant farmland transfer regulat ions are 

relaxed or when urban planning re -zoning allows transfer, without 

any obstruct ion or additional payment demands. ChenFull 

International Co obtained approval from the competent authorit ies 

to change part of the land use in August 2009 and has completed 

the transfer procedures. By the end of 2011, the new Dayuan plant 

was completed and is used as a production base for 

manufacturing plant engineering piping components.  

 

As of September 30, 2025, a portion of the original  land (No. 

1065-0015) subdivided into Nos. 0488-0000 and 0484-0000, 

totaling 281.98 ㎡ ,  remains designated for agricultural use and 

reserved for government waterway management projects. The 

cost of this port ion, amounting to NT$1,114 thousand, is recorded 

under Other Non-current Assets – Others.  

17、  Loans 

 (1) Short-Term Loans 

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Unsecured Loans       
Bank Loans    $785,000    $330,000    $878,000 
 

  The interest rates on the bank revolving loans were 

1.80%–1.95%, 1.80%–1.95%, and 1.78%–1.90% as of September 

30, 2025, December 31, 2024, and September 30, 2024, 

respectively.  
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 (2) Long-Term Loans 

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Secured Borrowings       
Bank Loans (Note 31)    $191,798    $ 69,458    $ - 
Less: Current Portion of 
Long-term Borrowings     -     -     - 
Long-term Borrowings    $191,798    $ 69,458    $ - 

 

  
Maturity 

date 
 Significant terms  

Effective 
interest rate  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Secured borrowings             

Secured New Taiwan 
Dollar bank loans from 

Bank of Taiwan 
 

2034. 
11.15 

 The loan term is from November 28, 2024 to 
December 15, 2027 (ROC year 116), during which 
a grace period applies. During the grace period, 
interest is payable monthly based on the 
outstanding loan balance. Commencing December 
15, 2027, the principal and interest shall be 
amortized over 84 monthly installments on an equal 
total payment basis. The maturity date of the loan is 
November 15, 2034 (ROC year 123). 

 1.35 

 

$ 69,458  $ 69,458  $ - 

Secured New Taiwan 
Dollar bank loans from 

Bank of Taiwan 
 

2034. 
11.15 

 The loan term is from April 14, 2025 to December 
15, 2027 (ROC year 116), during which a grace 
period applies. During the grace period, interest is 
payable monthly based on the outstanding loan 
balance. Commencing December 15, 2027, the 
principal and interest shall be amortized over 84 
monthly installments on an equal total payment 
basis. The maturity date of the loan is November 
15, 2034 (ROC year 123). 

 1.35 

 

34,324  -  - 

Secured New Taiwan 
Dollar bank loans from 

Bank of Taiwan 
 

2034. 
11.15 

 The loan term is from July 31, 2025 to December 
15, 2027 (ROC year 116), during which a grace 
period applies. During the grace period, interest is 
payable monthly based on the outstanding loan 
balance. Commencing December 15, 2027, the 
principal and interest shall be amortized over 84 
monthly installments on an equal total payment 
basis. The maturity date of the loan is November 
15, 2034 (ROC year 123). 

 1.35 

 

63,159  -  - 

Secured New Taiwan 
Dollar bank loans from 

Bank of Taiwan 
 

2034. 
11.15 

 The loan term is from August 29, 2025 to 
December 15, 2027 (ROC year 116), during which 
a grace period applies. During the grace period, 
interest is payable monthly based on the 
outstanding loan balance. Commencing December 
15, 2027, the principal and interest shall be 
amortized over 84 monthly installments on an equal 
total payment basis. The maturity date of the loan is 
November 15, 2034 (ROC year 123). 

 1.35 

 

24,857  -  - 

           191,798     69,458     - 
Less: current portion 
due within one year 

  
        -      -      -  

Long-term borrowings          $ 191,798    $ 69,458    $ - 

 

  The aforementioned bank borrowings are used for the 

construction of the Chiayi plant. Pursuant to the loan agreements, 

upon completion of the plant construction and the completion of 

t it le registration with ownership obtained, the Company is required 

to cancel the notice registration on the land on which the Chiayi  

plant is located and to create a joint mortgage on the land.  

18、  Accounts payable 

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Accounts payable       
Arising from operations    $324,277    $373,509    $353,092 
 

  The average credit period for the purchase of certain goods 

ranges from one to four months, and no interest is charged on 

accounts payable. The Group has established f inancial risk 

management policies to ensure that all  payables are settled  within 

the agreed credit terms.  
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19、Other l iabi l it ies  

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Current       
Other payables       
    Payables for equipment    $ 76,779    $ 4,128    $ 3,272 
    Accrued salaries and 
bonuses     90,737     98,596     78,593 
    Accrued employee 
compensation     46,184     68,920     45,513 
    Accrued directors’ and 
supervisors’ remuneration     6,030     8,520     6,390 
    Accrued compensated 
absences     14,418     13,670     13,647 
    Accrued interest     714     176     233 
    Others     103,286     81,545     71,508 
    $338,148    $275,555    $219,156 
       
Other current liabilities       
    Advance receipts    $ 3,164    $ 774    $ 118 
    Collections on behalf of 
others     3,046     2,535     2,565 
    Deferred revenue – 
current (Note 24)     49     49     49 
    $ 6,259    $ 3,358    $ 2,732 
       
Non-current       
Deferred revenue       
    Government grants 
(Note 24)    $ 53    $ 89    $ 102 
Guarantee deposits 
received     929     1,118     1,114 

    $ 982    $ 1,207    $ 1,216 
 

20、  Post-employment benefit plans  

  The pension expenses related to the defined benefit plans 

recognized for the periods ended September 30, 2025 and 2024 (for 

the period from July 1 to September 30) and for the periods ended 

September 30, 2025 and 2024 (for  the period from January 1 to 

September 30) were calculated based on the pension cost rates 

actuarial ly determined as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 

2023 (ROC year 112). The amounts recognized were NT$70 

thousand, NT$81 thousand, NT$219 thousand, an d NT$243 

thousand, respectively.  
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21、Equity  

 (1) Share Capital- 

Ordinary shares 

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Authorized shares  
(in thousands)     150,000     150,000     150,000 
Authorized capital    $1,500,000    $1,500,000    $1,500,000 
Issued and fully paid 
shares (in thousands)     113,761     113,761     113,761 
Issued capital    $1,137,605    $1,137,605    $1,137,605 

 

  Each issued ordinary share has a par value of NT$10 and 

carries one vote per share and the right to receive dividends.  

 (2) Capital surplus 

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Available for offsetting 
losses, distribution of 
cash, or capitalization 
(Note 1) 

 

 
 

 
 

 Share premium on 
issuance of shares 

 
  $ 258,010    $ 258,010    $ 258,010 

Premium on convertible 
bonds 

 
   207,018     207,018     207,018 

Treasury share 
transactions 

 
   2,567     1,863     1,863 

Difference between 
consideration 
paid/received for 
acquisition/disposal of 
subsidiaries and 
carrying amount of net 
assets 
acquired/disposed 

 

   544,174     544,174     544,174 
Merger surplus     10,618     10,618     10,618 
Available solely for 
offsetting losses 

 
     

Recognition of 
ownership in 
subsidiaries 

 

   211,006     211,006     211,006 
    $1,233,393    $1,232,689    $1,232,689 

 

Note 1:This category of capital surplus may be used to offset 

losses. When the Company has no losses, it may also be used for 

cash distr ibutions or capitalizat ion of shares, provided that the 

amount used for capitalization in any given year does not exceed 

a certain percentage of the paid-in capital.  
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Note 2:This category of capital surplus represents equity changes 

recognized due to changes in the subsidiaries’ equity when the 

Company has not actually acquired or disposed of the 

subsidiaries’ shares, or adjustments to the subsidiaries’ capital 

surplus recognized under the equity method.  

 

(3) Retained Earnings and Dividend Policy  

  Pursuant to the Articles of Associat ion of ChenFull 

International Co, if  the Company reports a prof it for the year, i t  

shall  f irst pay al l taxes in accordance with the law and offset any 

prior years’ losses. Ten percent of the remaining prof it shall be 

appropriated to the statutory reserve; however, this requirement 

does not apply if  the accumulated statutory reserve has reached 

the total capital of the Company. In addition, special reserves or 

portions of retained earnings shall be appropriated or reversed in 

accordance with laws and regulations. Any remaining prof it,  

together with accumulated undistr ibuted earnings, shall  be 

proposed by the Board of Directors in a dividend distr ibut ion plan 

in accordance with the Company’s dividend policy and submitted 

to the Shareholders’ Meeting for approval. Dividends are 

distributed in proportion to the total number of shares.  

 

The Company’s dividend policy considers the overall  business 

environment and industry characteris tics, the Company’s future 

f inancial structure and capital budget, and takes into account 

prof itabil i ty, undistr ibuted earnings, and capital surplus to propose 

an appropriate dividend distr ibution. As a principle, dividends 

shall not be less than 50% of distributable earnings for the year, 

aiming to ensure stable growth and maximize shareholder value. 

Cash dividends shall account for no less than 10% of total 

dividends for the year.  

 

The statutory reserve shall  be appropriated unti l its balance 

reaches the total paid-in capital. The statutory reserve may be 

used to offset losses. When the Company has no losses, any 

statutory reserve exceeding 25% of the paid -in capital may, 

besides being capitalized, also be distributed as cash dividends.  
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For the policy on employee and directors’ remuneration, refer to 

Note 23(7) – Employee and Directors’ Remuneration.  

  ChenFull International Co held its Annual General Meetings 

of Shareholders on May 26, 2025 and May 30, 2024, respectively, 

and approved the prof it distr ibut ion plans for the f iscal years 2024 

and 2023 as follows:：  

  Profit Distribution Plan 

  2024  2023 

Statutory reserve    $ 39,616    $ 16,720 
Special reserve   ( $ 15,491 )    $ 2,385  
Cash dividends    $282,726    $169,636 
Cash dividend per share 
(NT$)    $ 2.5    $ 1.5 

 

 (4) Other Equity Items 

 1. Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign Operations  

  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Balance at the beginning 
of the period   ( $ 15,260 )   ( $ 18,647 ) 
Arising during the period     
Exchange differences 
arising from translation of 
net assets of foreign 
operations   (  3,805 )     2,445 
Other comprehensive 
income for the period 

 
 (  3,805 )     2,445 

Balance at the end of the 
period   ( $ 19,065 )   ( $ 16,202 ) 

 

 2.  Unrealized Gains and Losses on Financial Assets Measured 

at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)  
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2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Balance at the 
beginning of the period    $ 44,252    $ 3,156 
Arising during the 
period     
Unrealized gains and 
losses     
Equity instruments   (  26 )     1,163 
Other comprehensive 
income for the period   (  26 )     1,163 
Balance at the end of 
the period    $ 44,226    $ 4,319 

 

 (5) Treasury Shares 

Reason for acquisition  

Shares issued 
as stock 

dividends by 
the parent 
company  

(in thousands) 

 

Shares 
transferred to 
employees  

(in thousands) 

 

Shares 
repurchased 

for cancellation 
(in thousands) 

 

Shares held by 
subsidiaries 
reclassified 

from long-term 
investments to 

treasury 
shares  

(in thousands) 

 
Total  

(in thousands) 

Number of shares as of 
January 1, 2025 

 63  670  -  219  952 

Number of shares as of 
September 30, 2025 

 63  670  -  219  952 

           
Number of shares as of 

January 1, 2024 
 63  670  -  219  952 

Number of shares as of 
September 30, 2024 

 63  670  -  219  952 

 

  Treasury shares held by ChenFull International Co are not 

permitted to be pledged in accordance with the Securit ies and 

Exchange Act, and do not carry r ights to dividends or voting 

rights.  

  The information regarding shares of ChenFull International 

Co held by subsidiaries as of the balance sheet date is as follows:  

Subsidiary  
Name 

 
Number of 
shares held 

(in thousands) 
 

Carrying 
amount 

 
Market  
value 

2025.9.30       
ChenFeng Machinery 
Co., Ltd. 

 282  $ 11,806  $ 11,806 

       
2024.12.31       
ChenFeng Machinery 
Co., Ltd. 

 282  $ 12,792  $ 12,792 

       
2024.9.30       
ChenFeng Machinery 
Co., Ltd. 

 282  $ 12,623  $ 12,623 
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  Shares of ChenFull International Co held by subsidiaries are 

treated as treasury shares. Except that they are not entit led to 

participate in capital increases of ChenFull International Co and 

do not carry voting rights, they have the same rights as ordin ary 

shareholders.  

 (6) Non-controll ing Interests  

  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Balance at the beginning of the 
period    $740,831    $682,543 
Net profit for the period     57,782     80,847 
Cash dividends paid to 
shareholders of ChenFull 
Precision subsidiary   (  109,455 )   (  65,673 ) 
Balance at the end of the period    $689,158    $697,717 
 

22、  Revenue 

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Revenue from 
customer contracts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sales revenue    $ 581,311    $ 457,705    $1,618,845    $1,331,290 

Construction  
contract revenue 

 

   246,561 

 

   276,641 

 

   763,950 

 

   712,535 

Service revenue     1,504     1,993     4,825     5,630 

    $ 829,376    $ 736,339    $2,387,620    $2,049,455 

 

 (1) Explanation of Revenue from Customer Contracts  

 1. Sales Revenue 

  Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when the 

goods are delivered to the customer’s designated location, at 

which point the customer has the right to the goods at a 

specif ied price and assumes the primary responsibil ity for 

resale. The customer also bears the risk of obsolescence and 

deterioration of the goods. The Group recognizes revenue 

and accounts receivable at that point.  

 2. Construction Revenue 

For construction contracts in which the real estate u nder 

construction is under the customer ’s control during the 

building process, the Group recognizes revenue over t ime.  



- 41 - 

 

3. Service Revenue 

Service revenue arises from the operation of the business 

centers.  

 (2) Contract Balance 

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30  2024.1.1 

Accounts 
Receivable (Note 9)    $ 1,068,550    $ 553,482    $ 507,041    $ 336,922 

         

Current Contract 
Assets         

Construction 
Contracts    $ 781,094    $ 1,064,373    $ 893,631    $ 534,092 

         

Current Contract 
Liabilities          

 Sale of Goods    $ 13,891    $ 31,127    $ 38,261    $ 40,875 

Construction 
Contracts     187,706     114,135     123,440     151,529 
    $ 201,597    $ 145,262    $ 161,701    $ 192,404 

 

23、Net Income from Continuing Operations  

 (1)  Interest Income 

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Bank Deposits / Cash 
in Bank    $ 1,073    $ 2,577    $ 4,576    $ 5,393 
Bonds Purchased 
under Resale 
Agreements / 
Repurchase Bonds     -     6,994     -     18,080 
Financial Assets at 
Fair Value through 
Profit or Loss (FVPL)     405     390     1,200     1,065 
Others / Other Assets     16     494     49     776 
    $ 1,494    $ 10,455    $ 5,825    $ 25,314 

 

 (2)  Other Income 

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Lease Income    $ 373    $ 390    $ 951    $ 987 
Dividend Income     6,127     3,649     15,838     8,626 
Other Income     895     782     4,207     3,457 
    $ 7,395    $ 4,821    $ 20,996    $ 13,070 
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 (3)  Other Gains and Losses 

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Gain/(Loss) on 
Disposal of Property, 
Plant and Equipment 

 

 ( $ 1,427 )    $ 2,879   ( $ 930 )    $ 4,179 
Gain/(Loss) on 
Disposal of Financial 
Assets 

 

       
Financial Assets at 
Fair Value through 
Profit or Loss (FVPL) 

 
 
 10,829   (  3,688 )     16,314     7,623 

Gain/(Loss) on 
Financial Assets 

 
       

Financial Assets at 
Fair Value through 
Profit or Loss (FVPL) 

 

   12,852     4,728     4,707      13,372 
Net Foreign Exchange 
Gain/(Loss) 

 
   16,944    (  25,640 )   (  32,521 )     14,992 

Other Losses   (  2,902 )   (  6,374 )   (  6,040 )   (  6,434 ) 
    $ 36,296    ( $ 28,095 )   ( $ 18,470 )    $ 33,732 

 

 (4)  Finance Costs  

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Interest on Bank Loans    $ 2,973    $ 3,084    $ 6,340    $ 5,500 
Interest on Short-term 
Notes / Bills 

 
   - 

 
   - 

 
   - 

 
   37 

Interest on Lease 
Liabilities 

 
   877 

 
   920 

 
   2,663 

 
   2,792 

Other Interest 
Expenses 

 
   - 

 
   - 

 
   - 

 
   30 

Less: Amount 
Capitalized to 
Qualifying Assets 

 

 (  531 )     -    (  1,095 )     -  
    $ 3,319    $ 4,004    $ 7,908    $ 8,359 

 

  Information on Capital ized Interest is as fol lows: 

  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Amount of Capitalized Interest    $ 1,095    $ - 
Capitalization Interest Rate     1.35%     - 

 

 (5) Depreciat ion and Amortizat ion  

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE)    $ 31,629    $ 32,076    $ 94,420    $ 98,352 
Investment Property     912     912     2,736     2,736 
Right-of-Use Assets     1,674     1,674     5,022     5,035 
Intangible Assets     2,140     2,075     6,845     6,345 
    $ 36,355    $ 36,737    $ 109,023    $ 112,468 
         

 
（Next page）  
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2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Depreciation Expense 
by Function         
Cost of Sales / Cost of 
Goods Sold (COGS)    $ 31,018    $ 30,262    $ 92,478    $ 92,659 
Operating Expenses     3,197     4,400     9,700     13,464 
    $ 34,215    $ 34,662    $ 102,178    $ 106,123 
         
Amortization Expense 
by Function         
Cost of Sales / Cost of 
Goods Sold (COGS)    $ 479    $ 632    $ 1,434    $ 1,948 
Operating Expenses     1,661     1,443     5,411     4,397 
    $ 2,140    $ 2,075    $ 6,845    $ 6,345 

 

 (6)  Employee Benefits Expense 

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Post-employment 
Benefits         
Defined Contribution 
Plan    $ 6,506    $ 5,840    $ 19,180    $ 17,542 
Defined Benefit Plan 
(Note 20)     70     81     219     243 
     6,576     5,921     19,399     17,785 
Other Employee 
Benefits     182,737     155,015     538,998     480,231 
Total Employee 
Benefits Expense    $ 189,313    $ 160,936    $ 558,397    $ 498,016 
         
By Function         
Cost of Sales / Cost of 
Goods Sold (COGS)    $ 123,896    $ 103,008    $ 365,502    $ 314,686 
Operating Expenses     65,417     57,928     192,895     183,330 
    $ 189,313    $ 160,936    $ 558,397    $ 498,016 

 

 (7) Employee and Director Remuneration  

  ChenFull International Co al locates employee and director 

remuneration based on the pre-tax prof it before deduction of such 

remunerations for the year, at rates of not less than 2% and not 

more than 2%, respectively. 

 

Pursuant to the amendment of the Securit ies and Exchange Act in 

August 2024, ChenFull International Co has, in the 2025 

shareholders’ meeting, approved an amendment to the Articles of 

Incorporation specifying that at least 10% of the allocated 

employee remuneration for the year shall  be distr ibuted to 

rank-and-f i le employees.  
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The estimated employee and director remunerations for 2025 and 

for the period from January 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 are as 

follows: 

Estimated Rate 

  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Employee Remuneration  6.52%  4.17% 
Director Remuneration  1.20%  1.06% 
 

Amount 

  

2025.7.1 
-9.30  

2024.7.1 
-9.30 

  Cash  Cash 

Employee Remuneration    $ 8,355    $ 5,769 
Director Remuneration     1,005     1,125 
 

  

2025.1.1 
-9.30  

2024.1.1 
-9.30 

  Cash  Cash 

Employee Remuneration    $ 16,385    $ 13,245 
Director Remuneration     3,015     3,375 
 

If  there are subsequent changes in the amounts after the 

consolidated annual f inancial statements have been approved for 

issuance, such changes sha ll be accounted for as changes in 

accounting estimates and adjusted in the following year.  

 

The employee remuneration and director remuneration for f iscal 

years 2024 and 2023 were approved by resolutions of the Board of 

Directors on March 3, 2025 and February 22, 2024, respectively, 

as follows:  

  2024  2023 

  Cash  Cash 

Employee Remuneration    $ 23,865    $ 10,090 
Directors’ and Supervisors’ 
Remuneration 

 
   4,500 

 
   3,800 

 

There was no dif ference between the actual amounts of employee 

remuneration and director remuneration approved by the Board of  

Directors for f iscal years 2024 and 2023 and the amounts 

recognized in the consolidated f inancial statements for the 

respective years.  
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Information regarding the employee remuneration and director 

remuneration resolved by the Board of Directors of ChenFull 

International Co is available on the Market Observation Post 

System of the Taiwan Stock Exchange.  

24、  Government Grants 

In November 2019, the Group received government grants 

amounting to NT$390 thousand related to power and util ity 

equipment. The grants were recognized as deferred income and are 

amortized to prof it or loss over the useful l ives of the r elated assets.  

 

The amounts of grant income recognized for 2025, for the period 

from July 1, 2024 to September 30, 2025, for 2025, and for the 

period from January 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 were NT$12 

thousand, NT$12 thousand, NT$36 thousand, and NT$36 thousand, 

respectively.  

 

25、 Income Tax from Continuing Operations  

 (1) Income Tax Recognized in Prof it or Loss  

  The major components of income tax expense are as follows :  

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Current Income Tax         
Arising in the Current 
Period    $ 12,044    $ 27,656    $ 57,452    $ 77,579 
Surtax on 
Undistributed Earnings     -     -     5,129     - 
Adjustments for Prior 
Years     -     3   (  1,449 )   (  2,047 ) 
     12,044     27,659     61,132     75,532 
Deferred Income Tax         
Arising in the Current 
Period     7,742    (  4,879 )   (  2,996 )     3,370  
     7,742    (  4,879 )   (  2,996 )     3,370  
Income Tax Expense 
Recognized in Profit or 
Loss    $ 19,786    $ 22,780    $ 58,136    $ 78,902 

 

 (2) Status of Income Tax Assessments  

The corporate income tax returns of ChenFull International Co 

have been examined and assessed by the tax authorit ies up to 

f iscal year 2022.  
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The corporate income tax returns of QuanFeng Co and ChenFul l 

Precision Co have been examined and assessed by the tax 

authorit ies up to f iscal year 2023.  

26、  Earnings per Share 

  The earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares 

used in the calculat ion of earnings per share are as follows:  

Net Prof it for the Period  

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30 
 

2024.7.1 
-9.30 

 
2025.1.1 

-9.30 
 

2024.1.1 
-9.30 

Net Profit Used in the 
Calculation of Basic 
Earnings per Share 

 $ 90,850  $ 78,607  $ 213,584  $ 275,097 

Net Profit Used in the 
Calculation of Diluted 
Earnings per Share 

 $ 90,850  $ 78,607  $ 213,584  $ 275,097 

 

Number of Shares 

Unit:  Thousands of  Shares  

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30 
 

2024.7.1 
-9.30 

 
2025.1.1 

-9.30 
 

2024.1.1 
-9.30 

Weighted Average 
Number of Ordinary 
Shares Used in the 
Calculation of Basic 
Earnings per Share 

 112,809  112,809  112,809  112,809 

Effect of Potential Dilutive 
Ordinary Shares: 

        

Employee Remuneration / 
Employee Share-based 

Payments 
 391  296  509  346 

Weighted Average 
Number of Ordinary 
Shares Used in the 

Calculation of Diluted 
Earnings per Share 

 113,200  113,105  113,318  113,155 

 

  If  the Group has the option to pay employee remuneration in 

either shares or cash, for the purpose of calculat ing diluted earnings 

per share, it is assumed that the remuneration wil l be settled in 

shares. The potential ordinary shares are included in the  weighted 

average number of shares outstanding when they have a dilutive 

effect. When calculating diluted earnings per share before the 

number of shares to be issued for employee remuneration is 

resolved in the following year, the dilutive effect of such p otential 

ordinary shares continues to be considered.  
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27、  Capital Risk Management 

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entit ies within the 

Group can continue as a going concern while optimizing the debt 

and equity balance to maximize shareholder returns.  

 

The Group’s capital structure comprises net debt (i.e., borrowings 

less cash and cash equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of  

the Company (i.e., share capital, capital surplus, retained earnings, 

and other equity items).  

 

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital 

requirements. 

 

The Group’s key management personnel review the Group’s capital 

structure on an annual basis. The review includes considerat ion of 

the cost of various types of capital and the associated risks. Based 

on the recommendations of key management personnel , the Group 

balances its overall capital structure through the payment of 

dividends, issuance of new shares, share repurchases, and 

issuance or repayment of debt.  

 

28、  Financial Instruments 

 (1) Information on Fair Value – Financial Instruments Not Measured at  

Fair Value 

The Group’s management considers that the carrying amounts of 

f inancial assets and f inancial l iabi l it ies not measured at fair value 

approximate their fair values.  

 (2) Information on Fair Value – Financial Instruments Measured at 

Fair Value on a Recurring Basis  
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 1. Fair Value Hierarchy 

2025.9.30 

  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial Assets at Fair 
Value through Profit or 
Loss (FVPL)         
Listed Stocks in Taiwan    $ 53,346    $ -    $ -    $ 53,346 
Beneficial Interests in 
Funds / Fund Units     109,431     -     -     109,431 
    $162,777    $ -    $ -    $162,777 

         

 
  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial Assets at Fair 
Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI)         
Equity Instrument 
Investments         
Over-the-Counter (OTC) 
Listed Stocks in Taiwan    $ -    $ 69,538    $ 1,317    $ 70,855 
Unlisted Stocks in Taiwan     -     -     90,810     90,810 
Limited Partnership 
Interests     -     -     30,000     30,000 
    $ -    $ 69,538    $122,127    $191,665 
 

2024.12.31 

  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial Assets at Fair 
Value through Profit or 
Loss (FVPL)         
Listed Stocks in Taiwan    $ 58,188    $ -    $ -    $ 58,188 
Beneficial Interests in 
Funds / Fund Units     73,326     -     -     73,326 
    $ 131,514    $ -    $ -    $ 131,514 
         
Financial Assets at Fair 
Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI)         
Equity Instrument 
Investments         
Over-the-Counter (OTC) 
Listed Stocks in Taiwan    $ -    $ -    $ 1,726    $ 1,726 
Unlisted Stocks in Taiwan     -     -     150,722     150,722 
    $ -    $ -    $ 152,448    $ 152,448 
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2024.9.30 

  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial Assets at Fair 
Value through Profit or 
Loss (FVPL)         
Listed Stocks in Taiwan    $ 55,587    $ -    $ -    $ 55,587 
Beneficial Interests in 
Funds / Fund Units     74,893     -     -     74,893 
    $130,480    $ -    $ -    $130,480 
         
Financial Assets at Fair 
Value through Other 
Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI)         
Equity Instrument 
Investments         
Over-the-Counter (OTC) 
Listed Stocks in Taiwan    $ -    $ -    $ 1,452    $ 1,452 
Unlisted Stocks in Taiwan     -     -     30,857     30,857 
    $ -    $ -    $ 32,309    $ 32,309 

 

  There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair 

value measurements for the periods ended September 30, 

2025 and for the period from January 1, 2024 to September 

30, 2024. 

 2.  Reconcil iation of Financial Instruments Measured at Fair 

Value – Level 3 

2025.1.1-2025.9.30 

  

Financial Assets at Fair 
Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI) 

Financial Assets  – Equity Instruments 

Balance at the Beginning of the Period / Opening 
Balance 

 
  $ 152,448 

Purchases     39,243 
Transfers out of Level 3   (  69,538 ) 
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 
(Unrealized Gains/Losses on Financial Assets at 
FVOCI)   (  26 ) 
Balance at the End of the Period / Closing Balance    $ 122,127 
 

2024.1.1-2024.9.30 

  

Financial Assets at Fair 
Value through Other 

Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI) 

Financial Assets  – Equity Instruments 

Opening Balance / Balance at the Beginning of the 
Period 

 
  $ 31,146 

Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 
(Unrealized Gains/Losses on Financial Assets at 
FVOCI)     1,163 
Closing Balance / Balance at the End of the Period    $ 32,309 
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For the period from January 1, 2025 to September 30, 2025, 

there were transfers between Level 3 and Level 2 fair value 

measurements, mainly relat ing to certain equity instruments 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

(FVOCI). These instruments were transferred from unlisted 

stocks in Taiwan to OTC-listed stocks. Their trading volumes 

were observed to determine whether they constitute an active 

market, and accordingly, they were rec lassif ied from Level 3 

to Level 2.  

 3. Valuation Techniques and Inputs for Level 2 Fair Value 

Measurements 

Financial Instrument 
Category  Valuation Technique and Inputs 

Non-Active OTC Listed 
Stocks in Taiwan 

 Market Approach: The fair value of the 
stock is determined based on transaction 
prices in an active market. Adjustments 
are made to reflect the relatively limited 
liquidity of the investee, and the 
resulting amount is used as a reasonable 
estimate of fair value. 

   
 

 4.  Valuation Techniques and Assumptions for Level 3 Fair Value 

Measurements 

The fair values of f inancial assets and f inancial l iabi l it ies are 

determined as follows:  

 

Financial assets and f inancial l iabil it ies with standard terms 

and condit ions that are traded in act ive markets are 

measured at fair value with reference to market quotations. 

When market prices are not available, valuation techniques 

are used to est imate fair value. The estimates and 

assumptions used in the Group’s valuation techniques are 

consistent with the information tha t market participants would 

use when pricing the f inancial instruments.  

 

The consolidated f inancial statements include unquoted 

equity instruments and limited partnership interests 

measured at fair value. The fair value of unquoted equity 
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instruments is determined using market -based valuation 

methods, including the Price -to-Earnings (P/E) ratio, 

Price-to-Sales (P/S) rat io, and Price-to-Book (P/B) rat io, to 

arrive at a reasonable estimate of fair value. The fair value of 

l imited partnership interests is dete rmined based on their net 

asset value.  

 (3) Types of Financial Instruments  

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Financial Assets       
At Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss (FVPL)       
Mandatorily at Fair Value 
through Profit or Loss    $ 162,777    $ 131,514    $ 130,480 
Financial Assets Measured at 
Amortized Cost (Note 1)     1,420,868     1,093,663     1,608,366 
Deposits Placed as Collateral     3,909     3,064     3,708 
Financial Assets at Fair Value 
through Other 
Comprehensive Income 
(FVOCI)       
Equity Instrument 
Investments     191,665     152,448     32,309 
       
Financial Liabilities       
Financial Liabilities Measured 
at Amortized Cost (Note 2)     1,475,356     852,721     1,300,273 
Deposits Received as 
Collateral     929     1,118     1,114 

 

Note 1: The balance includes f inancial assets measured at  

amortized cost, such as cash and cash equivalents, notes 

receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables, and 

other f inancial assets.  

Note 2: The balance includes f inancial l iabil it ies measured at  

amortized cost, such as short-term borrowings, accounts  

payable, other payables (excluding employee benefits  

payable), and long-term borrowings.  

 (4)  Objectives and Policies of Financial Risk Management  

The Group’s r isk management objectives primarily focus on 

managing market r isk, credit r isk, and l iquidity risk arising from its 

operating act ivit ies. The Group identif ies, measures, and 

manages these risks in accordance with its policies and risk 

appetite.  
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The Group has established appropriate policies, procedures, and 

internal controls to manage the aforementioned f inancial r isks in 

accordance with relevant regulat ions. Signif icant f inancial 

activit ies are subject to review by the Board of Directors in 

accordance with the relevant regulations and internal control 

systems. During f inancial management activit ies, the Group 

str ict ly complies with the established requirements for f inancial 

risk management.  

 1. Market Risk 

The Group’s operating activit ies expose it primari ly to foreign 

currency risk (see section (1) below) and interest rate risk 

(see section (2) below).  

 (1) Foreign Currency Risk 

The carrying amounts of monetary assets and liabil it ies 

denominated in currencies other than the functional 

currency as of the balance sheet date (including 

monetary items denominated in non-functional 

currencies that have been offset in the consolidated 

f inancial statements) are disclosed in Note 32.  

Sensit ivity Analysis 

The Group is mainly exposed to f luctuations in the US 

dollar exchange rate. The table below presents a 

sensit ivity analysis showing the impact on the Group’s 

pre-tax prof it or equity if  the New Taiwan Dollar 

(functional currency) were to strengthen or weaken by 

1% against the relevant foreign currencies. The 1% rate 

represents the sensitivity rat io used internally for 

report ing foreign currency risk to key management 

personnel and also ref lects management’s assessment 

of a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange 

rates. 
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A posit ive amount in the table indicates that a 1% 

depreciat ion of the New Taiwan Dollar against the 

respective foreign currencies would increase pre -tax 

prof it or equity; conversely, a 1% appreciat ion of the New 

Taiwan Dol lar would have an equal but opposite effect.  

  Impact of USD 

  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Profit or Loss    $ 5,264    $ 10,867 

 

 (2)  Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate r isk is the risk that the fair value or future 

cash f lows of a f inancial instrument wil l f luctuate due to 

changes in market interest rates.  

 

The carrying amounts of f inancial assets and f inancial 

l iabil it ies exposed to interest rate risk as of the balance 

sheet date are as follows:  

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Subject to Fair Value 
Interest Rate Risk       

– Financial Assets    $ 154,878    $ 160,128    $ 377,596 

– Financial Liabilities     896,227     445,448     994,835 

Subject to Cash Flow 
Interest Rate Risk       

– Financial Assets     179,243     353,863     707,910 

– Financial Liabilities     191,798     69,458     - 

 

Sensit ivity Analysis  

Fixed-rate f inancial assets and f inancial l iabi l i t ies held 

by the Group are measured at amortized cost and are 

therefore excluded from the analysis. The interest rate 

risk sensit ivity analysis is based on the f inancial assets 

as of the balance sheet date. The Group uses a 0.25% 

increase or decrease in market interest rates as a 

reasonable risk assessment for reporting interest rate 

changes to management.  
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Assuming al l other variables remain constant, a 0.25% 

increase/decrease in market interest rates would 

decrease/increase the Group’s pre-tax prof it by NT$24 

thousand for the period ended September 30, 2025, and 

increase/decrease by NT$1,327 thousand for the period 

from January 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024.  

 (3) Other Price Risk 

The consolidated company is exposed to equity price risk 

arising from investments in equity securit ies and 

beneficiary cert if icates of funds.  

 

Sensit ivity Analysis  

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the equity 

price exposure at the balance sheet date.  

 

If  equity prices were to increase/decrease by 5%, prof it 

or loss before tax for 2025 and for the period from 

January 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 would 

increase/decrease by NT$8,139 thousand and NT$6,524 

thousand, respectively, as a result of the 

increase/decrease in the fair value of f inancial assets 

measured at fair value through prof it or loss.  

 

If  equity prices were to increase/decrease by 5%, other 

comprehensive income before tax for 2025 and for t he 

period from January 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024 

would increase/decrease by NT$9,583 thousand and 

NT$1,615 thousand, respectively, as a result of the 

increase/decrease in the fair value of f inancial assets 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive 

income. 

 

The sensitivity of the consolidated company’s 

investments in equity securit ies does not differ 

signif icantly from that of the prior year.  
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 2. Credit Risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk of f inancial loss to the Group 

arising from a counterparty’s failure to fulf i l l  its contractual 

obligat ions. As of the balance sheet date, the maximum credit  

risk exposure of the consolidated company that may result in 

f inancial loss due to non-performance by counterparties 

mainly arises from the carrying amounts of f inancial assets 

recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.  

 

The consolidated company’s policy is to conduct transactions 

only with counterparties of good credit standing and, where 

necessary, to obtain suff icient col lateral to mitigate the risk  of 

f inancial loss arising from default. To reduce credit r isk, the 

consolidated company’s management has established 

management control procedures over the determination and 

approval of credit l imits to ensure the recovery of overdue 

receivables. In addit ion, as of the balance sheet date, the 

consolidated company reviews the recoverable amounts of 

receivables individually to ensure that appropriate 

impairment losses have been recognized for uncollectible 

receivables. Accordingly, management of the consolid ated 

company believes that the consolidated company’s credit  risk 

has been signif icantly reduced and is therefore limited.  

 

The consolidated company’s credit r isk is mainly 

concentrated in its top f ive customers. As of September 30, 

2025, December 31, 2024, and September 30, 2024, 

receivables from the top f ive customers accounted for 41%, 

61%, and 65%, respectively, of the consolidated company’s 

total receivables. The concentrat ion of credit  r isk for the 

remaining receivables is not signif icant.  

 3. Liquidi ty Risk 

The consolidated company manages liquidity risk by 

maintaining suff icient levels of cash and cash equivalents to 

support Group operations and mitigate the effects of 

f luctuations in cash f lows. The consolidated company’s 



- 56 - 

management monitors the ut i l izat ion of bank credit faci l it ies 

and ensures compliance with the terms of loan agreements.  

 

Bank borrowings represent an important source of l iquidity for 

the consolidated company. As of September 30, 2025, 

December 31, 2024, and September 30, 2024, the 

consolidated company had unused credit  facil it ies, as 

described in Note (2) on credit faci l i t ies below.  

 (1) Liquidity and Interest Rate Risk Table for Non-derivat ive 

Financial Liabil i t ies  

The maturity analysis of non-derivative f inancial 

l iabil it ies is prepared based on the earl iest dates on 

which the consolidated company can be required to repay, 

using undiscounted cash f lows of the f inancial l iabi l it ies 

(including principal and estimated interest). The maturity 

analysis of other non-derivat ive f inancial l iabi l it ies is 

prepared based on the contractual repayment dates.  

2025.9.30 

  
Less than 

1 year 
 

1 to 2  
years 

 
2 to 3  
years 

 
More than 

3 years 
 Total 

Non-derivative 
Financial 
Liabilities           
Accounts 
payable    $ 324,277    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 324,277 

Lease liabilities     9,179     9,179     9,179     112,443     139,980 
Other payables     173,567     -     -     -     173,567 

Short-term 
borrowings     785,714     -     22,833     168,965     977,512 

    $1,292,737    $ 9,179    $ 32,012    $ 281,408    $1,615,336 

 

  Further information on the maturity analysis of lease 

liabil it ies is as follows:  

  
Less than 1 
year 

 1 to 3 years  3 to 6 years  More than 6 
years 

 Total 

lease liabilities    $ 9,179    $ 18,358    $ 27,537    $ 84,906    $ 139,980 

 

2024.12.31 

  
Less than 1 
year 

 1 to 2 years  2 to 3 years  More than 3 
years 

 Total 

Non-derivative 
Financial 
Liabilities           
Accounts 
payable 

 
  $ 373,509 

 
  $ - 

 
  $ - 

 
  $ - 

 
  $ 373,509 

Lease liabilities     9,179     9,179     9,179     119,327     146,864 
Other payables     79,579     -     -     -     79,579 
Borrowings     330,175     -     -     69,458     399,633 
    $ 792,442    $ 9,179    $ 9,179    $ 188,785    $ 999,585 



- 57 - 

 

  Further detai ls of the maturity analysis of lease 

liabil it ies are as follows:  

  
Less than 1 

year 
 1 to 3 years  3 to 6 years  More than 6 

years 
 Total 

lease liabilities  $ 9,179  $ 18,358  $ 27,537  $ 91,790  $ 146,864 

 

2024.9.30 

  
Less than 1 
year 

 1 to 2 years  2 to 3 years  More than 3 
years 

 Total 

Non-derivative 
Financial 
Liabilities           
Accounts 
payable    $ 353,092    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 353,092 
Lease liabilities     9,179     9,179     9,179     121,622     149,159 
Other payables     68,946     -     -     -     68,946 
Short-term 
borrowings     878,235     -     -     -     878,235 
    $1,309,452    $ 9,179    $ 9,179    $ 121,622    $1,449,432 

 

  Further information on the maturity analysis of lease 

liabil it ies is as follows:  

  
Less than 1 
year 

 1 to 3 years  3 to 6 years  More than 6 
years 

 Total 

lease liabilities    $ 9,179    $ 18,358    $ 27,537    $ 94,085    $ 149,159 

 

 (2) Credit Facilit ies 

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Unsecured Bank 
Credit Facilities and 
Commercial Paper 
Issuance Limits 
(Reviewed Annually)       
Amount utilized    $ 813,938    $ 343,977    $ 891,977 
Amount unused     2,041,062     2,486,023     1,938,023 
    $ 2,855,000    $ 2,830,000    $ 2,830,000 
       
Secured Bank Credit 
Facilities and 
Commercial Paper 
Issuance Limits 
(Reviewed Annually)       
Amount utilized    $ 191,798    $ 69,458    $ - 
Amount unused     1,408,202     1,530,542     - 
    $ 1,600,000    $ 1,600,000    $ - 

 

29、  Related Party Transactions 

Transactions, account balances, income, and expenses between 

ChenFull International Co. and its subsidiaries (which are related 

parties of ChenFull International Co.) are fully el iminated upon 

consol idation and, therefore, are not disclosed in these notes. 

Except as disclosed in other notes, transactions between the 

consolidated company and other related parties are as follows.  
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Key Management Compensation 

  
2025.7.1 

-9.30  
2024.7.1 

-9.30  
2025.1.1 

-9.30  
2024.1.1 

-9.30 

Short-term employee 
benefits 

 
  $ 6,865 

 
  $ 5,451 

 
  $ 20,684 

 
  $ 16,502 

Post-employment benefits     149     128     447     384 
    $ 7,014    $ 5,579    $ 21,131    $ 16,886 

 

The remuneration of directors and other key managem ent personnel 

is determined by the Remuneration Committee based on individual 

performance and market trends.  

30、  Assets Pledged as Collateral  

The following assets of the consolidated company are pledged as 

performance guarantees for land development and bu siness 

operations:  

  2025.9.30  2024.12.31  2024.9.30 

Other Financial Assets – 
Current 

 
     

Pledged time deposits    $ 9,048    $ 9,046    $ 9,046 
Other Financial Assets – 
Non-current 

 
     

Pledged time deposits     34,543     34,543     34,543 
    $ 43,591    $ 43,589    $ 43,589 

 

31、  Signif icant Contingent Liabil it ies and Unrecognized Contractual 

Commitments 

Except as disclosed in other notes, the consolidated company has 

the following signif icant commitments and contingent matters:  

 (1) As of September 30, 2025, ChenFull International Co. of the 

consolidated company had issued guarantee notes totaling 

NT$1,132,326 thousand in connection with credit facil it ies, 

business performance, and project warranties.  

 (2) As of September 30, 2025, ChenFull Precision Co. of the 

consolidated company had issued guarantee notes totaling 

NT$2,721,463 thousand in connection with credit  facil i t ies and 

business performance.  

 (3) As of September 30, 2025, ChenFull International Co. of the 

consolidated company had received guarantee notes totaling 

NT$51,708 thousand from vendors in connection with performance 

or warranty guarantees.  
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 (4) As of September 30, 2025, ChenFull Precision Co. of the 

consolidated company had received guarantee notes totaling 

NT$187,611 thousand from vendors in connection with 

performance or warranty guarantees.  

 (5) The consolidated company has contractual commitments with 

various vendors to purchase equipment and renovate plants, with 

a total contract value of NT$1,595,529 thousand. As of September 

30, 2025, NT$437,780 thousand had been paid (recorded as 

prepaid equipment and construct ion -in-progress for property, 

plant, and equipment).  

32、  Information on Signif icant Foreign Currency Assets and Liabilit ies  

The following information is presented by aggregating foreign 

currencies other than the functional currency of each entity within 

the consolidated company. The disclosed exchange rates refer to 

the rates used to convert these foreign currencies into the functional 

currency. Signif icant foreign currency assets and liabi l it ies are a s 

follows: 

2025.9.30 

  
Foreign 

Currency 
 Exchange Rate  Carrying 

Amount 

Foreign 
Currency 
Assets 

      

Monetary Items       
US Dollar 
(USD) 

   $ 17,723   30.445 （USD：NTD）    $ 539,578 

Renminbi 
(RMB) 

    2   4.27 （RMB：NTD）     9 

Euro (EUR)     43   35.77 （EUR：NTD）     1,546 

Japanese Yen 
(JPY) 

    20   0.21 （JPY：NTD）     4 

        $ 541,137 
       
Foreign 
Currency 
Liabilities 

      

Monetary Items       
US Dollar 
(USD) 

    434   30.445 （USD：NTD）    $ 13,215 

Renminbi 
(RMB) 

    8,448   4.27 （RMB：NTD）     36,083 

Euro (EUR)     20   35.77 （EUR：NTD）     713 

Foreign 
Currency 
Assets 

       $ 50,011 
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2024.12.31 

 
 Foreign 

Currency 
 Exchange Rate  

Carrying 
Amount 

Foreign 
Currency 
Assets 

      

Monetary Items       
US Dollar 
(USD) 

   $ 18,020   32.785 （USD：NTD）  
  $ 590,780 

Renminbi 
(RMB) 

    1   4.478 （RMB：NTD）  
   4 

Euro (EUR)     179   34.14 （EUR：NTD）     6,098 
Japanese Yen 
(JPY) 

    17,551   0.21 （JPY：NTD）  
   3,684 

        $ 600,566 
       
Foreign 
Currency 
Liabilities 

      

Monetary Items       
US Dollar 
(USD) 

    582   32.785 （USD：NTD）  
  $ 19,094 

Renminbi 
(RMB) 

    8,295   4.478 （RMB：NTD）  
   37,146 

Euro (EUR)     3   34.14 （EUR：NTD）     112 
        $ 56,352 
 

2024.9.30 

  
Foreign 

Currency 
 Exchange Rate  

Carrying 
Amount 

Foreign 
Currency 
Assets 

      

Monetary Items       
US Dollar 
(USD) 

   $ 34,400   31.65 （USD：NTD）    $1,088,758 

Renminbi 
(RMB) 

    1   4.523 （RMB：NTD）     4 

Euro (EUR)     62   35.38 （EUR：NTD）     2,183 

Japanese Yen 
(JPY) 

    1,426   0.222 （JPY：NTD）     317 

        $1,091,262 
       
Foreign 
Currency 
Liabilities 

      

Monetary Items       
US Dollar 
(USD) 

    64   31.65 （USD：NTD）    $ 2,030 

Renminbi 
(RMB) 

    9,849   4.523 （RMB：NTD）     44,549 

Euro (EUR)     2   35.38 （EUR：NTD）     66 

        $ 46,645 
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For the consolidated company, foreign exchange gains and losses 

(including both realized and unrealized) for 2025 and for the period 

from July 1, 2024 to September 30, 2025, and for 2025 and the 

period from January 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024, amounted to 

gains of NT$16,944 thousand, losses of NT$25,640 thousand, and 

losses of NT$32,521 thousand, gains of NT$14,992 thousand, 

respectively. Due to the wide variety of foreign currencies involved 

in transactions and the functional currencies of the Group’s entit ies, 

foreign exchange gains and losses cannot be disclosed separately 

by each signif icant foreign currency.  

33、  Notes Disclosure Items  

(1)  Signif icant Transactions  

(2) Information Related to Investments in Associates and Subsidiaries： 

No. Item Description 

1 Lending funds to others None 

2 Endorsing or guaranteeing for others None 

3 
Significant securities held at period-end (excluding 
investments in subsidiaries, associates, and joint 
ventures) 

Schedule 1 

4 
Purchase or sale of goods with related parties amounting 
to NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more 

None 

5 
Receivables from related parties amounting to NT$100 
million or 20% of paid-in capital or more 

None 

6 
Others: Business relationships and significant transactions 
between the parent and subsidiaries and among 
subsidiaries, including amounts 

Schedule 4 

7 Information on investments in associates and subsidiaries Schedule 2 
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 (3) Information on Investments in Mainland China:  

No. Item Description 

1 

Name of invested company in Mainland China, main 
business activities, paid-in capital, investment method, 
fund remittance situation, shareholding percentage, 
investment gains or losses, carrying amount of investment 
at period-end, repatriated investment gains or losses, and 
investment ceiling for Mainland China 

Schedule 3 

2 

Significant transactions directly or indirectly conducted 
with the invested company in Mainland China through third 
regions, including their prices, payment terms, and 
unrealized gains or losses: 

 

Purchase amount and percentage, and period-end 
balance of related payables and percentage 

Schedule 5 

Sales amount and percentage, and period-end balance of 
related receivables and percentage 

Schedule 5 

Property transaction amounts and resulting gains or 
losses 

None 

Period-end balance of endorsed notes or collateral 
provided and its purpose 

None 

Maximum balance, period-end balance, interest rate 
range, and total interest of fund financing 

None 

Other transactions that have a significant impact on 
current profit or loss or financial position, such as provision 
or receipt of services 

None 

 

34、  Segment Information 

Information provided to the chief operating decision -makers for the 

purpose of resource allocation and performance evaluation focuses 

on the types of products or services delivered or provided. The 

reportable segments of the consolida ted company are as follows:  

Engineering and Machinery Business – Plant operations, system 

integrat ion, and shoe machinery.  

Precision Business – Precision machining.  
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 (1) Segment Revenue and Operating Results  

Revenue and operating results of the continuin g operations of the 

consolidated company, analyzed by reportable segment, are as 

follows: 

  
Engineering 

and Machinery 
Business 

 
Precision 
Business 

 Common  
Adjustments 

and 
Eliminations 

 Total 

January 1, 2025 – 
September 30, 2025           
Revenue           
Revenue from external 
customers    $ 1,082,766    $ 1,304,854    $ -    $ -    $ 2,387,620 
Inter-segment revenue     1,348     -     -   (  1,348 )     - 
Interest income     -     -     5,825     -     5,825 
Total revenue    $ 1,084,114    $ 1,304,854    $ 5,825   ( $ 1,348 )    $ 2,393,445 
Interest expense    $ -    $ -    $ 7,908    $ -    $ 7,908 
Depreciation and 
amortization    $ 12,404    $ 86,377    $ 10,242    $ -    $ 109,023 
Net profit before tax from 
continuing operations    $ 145,895     $ 192,092   ( $ 8,485 )    $ -    $ 329,502 
           
January 1, 2024 – 
September 30, 2024           
Revenue           
Revenue from external 
customers    $ 982,513    $ 1,066,942    $ -    $ -    $ 2,049,455 
Inter-segment revenue     44,582     -     -   (  44,582 )     - 
Interest income     -     -     25,314     -     25,314 
Total revenue    $ 1,027,095    $ 1,066,942    $ 25,314   ( $ 44,582 )    $ 2,074,769 
Interest expense    $ -    $ -    $ 8,359    $ -    $ 8,359 
Depreciation and 
amortization    $ 14,534    $ 87,061    $ 10,873    $ -    $ 112,468 
Net profit before tax from 
continuing operations    $ 179,427     $ 270,294   ( $ 14,875 )    $ -    $ 434,846 
 

Inter-segment sales are measured at market prices.  

Segment prof it refers to the prof it earned by each segment, 

excluding al located head off ice administrat ive costs and directors’ 

remuneration, share of prof it or loss of associates accounted for 

using the equity method, gains or losses on disposal of long -term 

equity investments under the equity method, rental income, 

interest income, gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment, gains or losses on disposal of investments, foreign 

exchange gains or losses, fair value gains or losses on f inancial 

instruments, interest expense, and income tax expense. This 

measure is provided to the chief operating decision -makers for the 

purpose of al locating resources to segments and assessing their 

performance. 
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 (2) Segment Assets and Liabilit ies  

  

Engineering 
and Machinery 

Business 
 

Precision 
Business 

 Common  
Adjustments 

and 
Eliminations 

 Total 

30-Sep-25           
Assets           
Capital expenditure on 
non-current assets    $ 6,233    $ 324,795    $ 10,595    $ -    $ 341,623 
Segment assets    $ 2,187,362    $ 2,937,656    $ 1,179,341    $ -    $ 6,304,359 
Segment liabilities    $ 491,995    $ 1,074,936    $ 432,858    $ -    $ 1,999,789 
           
31-Dec-24           
Assets           
Capital expenditure on 
non-current assets    $ 2,146 

 
  $ 583,068 

 
  $ - 

 
  $ - 

 
  $ 585,214 

Segment assets    $ 2,012,901    $ 2,698,859    $ 1,142,164    $ -    $ 5,853,924 
Segment liabilities    $ 441,017    $ 696,475    $ 287,920    $ -    $ 1,425,412 
           
30-Sep-24           
Assets           
Capital expenditure on 
non-current assets    $ 849    $ 481,901    $ -    $ -    $ 482,750 
Segment assets    $ 1,919,949    $ 3,020,684    $ 1,094,526    $ -    $ 6,035,159 
Segment liabilities    $ 431,896    $ 1,134,833    $ 244,974    $ -    $ 1,811,703 



- 65 - 

ChenFul l  In te rnat ional  Company L imi ted and  Subsid iar ies  

Sign i f icant  Secur i t ies  He ld at  Per iod -End  

2025.9.30  

Schedule 1  Uni t :  Unless otherwise s tated,  amounts  are in  thousands of  New Taiwan 
Dol lars  (NT$) and fore ign currenc ies.  

 

Held  
Company 

Type and Name of Securities  
(Note 1) 

Relationship with 
Securities Issuer 

Account Title 

Period-End 

Notes Number of  
Shares / Units 

Carrying  
Amount 

Ownership 
Percentage 

(%) 

Fair  
Value 

ChenFull International 
Co,Ltd 

Stock – OTC (Unlisted)        

 Mingchao Enterprise Co., Ltd. 

None 

Financial Assets at Fair 
Value Through Other 
Comprehensive 
Income – Non-current 

3,412,174 $ 81,771 9.10 $ 81,771 

 

 Stock – Emerging Stock Board (GreTai 
Securities Market) 

  
    

 

 Naiter Technology Materials Co., Ltd. None Financial Assets at Fair 
Value Through Other 
Comprehensive 
Income – Non-current 

1,200,000 $ 55,630 1.74 $ 55,630 

 

 Stock – Private Placement        
 Taiwan SME Development Co., Ltd. None Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Other 
Comprehensive 
Income – Non-current 

854,360 $ 9,039 1.21 $ 9,039 

 

 Limited Partnership        
 Hongqi Sustainable and Climate Limited 

Partnership 
None Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Other 
Comprehensive 
Income – Non-current 

30,000,000 $ 30,000 5.41 $ 30,000 

 

         
 Fund Beneficiary Certificate – Domestic        
 Yuanta 2–10 Year Investment Grade 

Corporate Bond Fund None 
Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Profit or 
Loss – Current 

3,000,000 $ 29,146 2.59 $ 29,146 
 

 Cathay FTSE China A50 Fund None 〃 462,000 11,823 0.26 11,823  

    
 

$ 40,969  $ 40,969  
     

 
 

 
 

 Stock – Listed        
 Fubon Financial B Shares None  Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Profit or 
Loss – Current 

155,000 $ 8,370 0.05 $ 8,370 
 

 

（ Next  page）  
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Held  
Company 

Type and Name of Securities  
(Note 1) 

Relationship with 
Securities Issuer 

Account Title 

Period-End 

Notes Number of  
Shares / Units 

Carrying  
Amount 

Ownership 
Percentage 

(%) 

Fair  
Value 

ChenFeng. Stock – Listed        
Machinery Co., Ltd ChenFull International CO., LTD. Parent Company Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income – Non-current 

   281,759   $ 11,806 0.25   $ 11,806  

 Stock – Emerging Stock Board (GreTai 
Securities Market) 

       

 Meiqiang Optical Co., Ltd. None Financial Assets at Fair 
Value Through Other 

Comprehensive 
Income – Non-current 

   66,000   $ 1,317 0.19   $ 1,317  

 Naiter Technology Materials Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    300,000    13,908 0.44    13,908  

       $ 15,225    $ 15,225  
         
 Stock – Private Placement        
 Meiqi Technology Co., Ltd. None Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Other 
Comprehensive 
Income – Non-current 

   46,750   $ - 0.19   $ -  

 Huanmeng International Enterprise Co., 
Ltd. 

〃 〃    35,000    - 0.25    -  

       $ -    $ -  
 Fund Beneficiary Certificate – Domestic        
 Cathay FTSE China A50 Fund None Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Profit or 
Loss – Current 

   490,000   $ 12,539 0.28   $ 12,539  

 Yuanta Japan Leading Companies Fund 
A 

〃 〃    1,002,004    12,295 0.07    12,295  

 Uni-President Taiwan High Dividend 
Momentum ETF Trust Investment Fund 

〃 〃    666,000    9,410 0.03    9,410  

 Yuanta Taiwan Excellence 50 Securities 
Investment Trust Fund 

〃 〃    592,000    34,218 -    34,218  

       $ 68,462    $ 68,462  
         
 Stock – Listed        
 Feng Tai Enterprise Co., Ltd. None Current Financial Assets 

at Fair Value Through 
Profit or Loss 

   24,640   $ 3,031 -   $ 3,031  

 Fubon Financial B Shares 〃 〃    155,000    8,370 0.05    8,370  

 KGI Financial Holding Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    160,000    2,392 -    2,392  

 

（ Next  page）  
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Held  
Company 

Type and Name of Securities  
(Note 1) 

Relationship with 
Securities Issuer 

Account Title 

Period-End 

Notes Number of  
Shares / Units 

Carrying  
Amount 

Ownership 
Percentage 

(%) 

Fair  
Value 

 Discretionary Investment Account (Note 2)        
 Chi Hsing Precision Industry Co., Ltd. None Financial Assets at Fair 

Value Through Profit or 
Loss – Current 

   8,000   $ 7,848 -   $ 7,848  

 International Games System Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    8,000    6,296 -    6,296  

 WPG Holdings Limited 〃 〃    41,000    5,760 -    5,760  

 MIC Electronics Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    23,000    5,623 0.01    5,623  

 Cleanaway Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    28,000    5,656 0.02    5,656  

       $ 44,976    $ 44,976  
         

 
 
Note 1:Marketable secur i t ies  re fer red to  in  th is  tab le inc lude s tocks,  bonds,  benef ic iary cer t i f i cates,  and marketable secur i t ies  der i ved f rom the  

foregoing i tems that  fa l l  wi th in  the scope o f  In te rnat ional  Account ing Standard No.  9 ,  F inanc ia l  Ins t rum ents .  

Note 2: Investments  are made through d iscret ionary asset  management  arrangements  entered in to wi th  investment  advisory compani es,  under which  

the entrusted par ty conducts  t rad ing in  the  centra l ized secur i t ies  exchange market  a t  i ts  own d iscret ion.  

Note 3:For  in format ion re la ted to  investments  in  subs id iar ies ,  assoc iates,  and jo in t  ventures,  p lease refer  to  Schedules I I  and I I I .  
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Ch e n F u l l  I n te r n a t i o n a l  C om pa n y L im i t e d  an d  S ub s i d i a r i es  

Nam e o f  I n v es t e e ,  L o ca t i o n ,  a n d  O t h e r  Re l ev a n t  I n fo rm a t i o n  

2 02 5 .1 . 1 -2 0 2 5 . 9 . 3 0  

S c he d u l e  2  Un i t :  Un le ss  o t h e r w i s e  n o t e d ,  am o u n ts  a r e  i n  t h o us a n ds  o f  NT D  a n d  f o r e i g n  c u r r e nc i es  
 

Name of Investing 
Company 

Name of  
Investee 

Location 

Discretionary 
Investment Account 

(Note 2) 
Chi Hsing Precision 

Industry Co., Ltd. 

Original Investment Amount Ending Balance 
Investee 
Current 

Period (Loss) 
/ Profit 

Investment 
(Loss) / Profit 
Recognized 

in the Current 
Period 

Remarks 
End of 
Current 
Period 

End of Prior 
Period 

Number of 
Shares 

Ownership 
Percentag

e (%) 

Carrying 
Amount 

ChenFull 
International CO., 

LTD. 

ChenFeng  
Machinery Co., Ltd. 

12F., No. 107, Sec. 4, 
Zhongxiao E. Rd., 

Da’an Dist.,  
Taipei City 

International Games 
System Co., Ltd. 

$ 132,880 $ 132,880 15,280,000 100 $ 213,240 $ 21,381 $ 20,677 Subsidiary 

 

CHEN FULL  
HOLDING  
CO., LTD. 

Vistra Corporate 
Services 

Centre,Ground Floor 
NPF Building,Beach 
Road,Apia,Samoa 

WPG Holdings Limited 
60,448 

( USD2,000 ) 
60,448 

( USD2,000 ) 
- 100 70,214 113 113 Subsidiary 

 
ChenFull Precision 

CO., LTD. 

No. 28, Houke South 
Rd., Houli Dist., 
Taichung City 

MIC Electronics  
Co., Ltd. 

372,780 372,780 37,278,000 63 1,173,562 156,181 98,399 
Subsidiary 
(Note 1) 

CHEN FULL HOLDING 
CO., LTD. 

NEW 
OPPORTUNITY 

LIMITED 

Vistra Corporate 
Services 

Centre,Ground Floor 
NPF Building,Beach 
Road,Apia,Samoa 

Cleanaway Co., Ltd. 
60,448 

( USD2,000 ) 
60,448 

( USD2,000 ) 
- 100 

51,026 
( USD1,676 ) 

(  468 ) 
( USD -15 ) 

(  468 ) 
( USD -15 ) 

Subsidiary 

NEW 
OPPORTUNITY 

LIMITED 

ChenFeng Machinery 
(Dongguan) Co., 

Ltd. (Note 2) 

No. 23, Yanhe Rd., 
Houjie Town, 

Dongguan City, 
Guangdong 

Province, China 

Discretionary 
Investment Account 

(Note 2) 

60,448 
( USD2,000 ) 

60,448 
( USD2,000 ) 

- 100 
51,026 

( USD1,676 ) 
(  468 ) 
( USD -15 ) 

(  468 ) 
( USD -15 ) 

Subsidiary 

            
            
            

 

No t e  1 :  S i g n i f i ca n t  n o n - c on t r o l l i ng  i n te r es t .  

No t e  2 :  F o r  i n fo rm a t i o n  on  i nv es t ee s  i n  Ma i n l a nd  C h in a ,  p l e as e  r e fe r  t o  S c h e du l e  I I I .  
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ChenFul l  I n ternat i ona l  Company L im i ted and Subs id i ar i es  

Inves tment  In format ion i n  Main land China  

2025.1 .1 -2025.9 .30  

Schedule  3  Uni t :  Un less  o the rwise no ted,  amounts  are  in  thousands  o f  NTD and fore ign cur renc ies  
 

Investee 
Company in 

Mainland China 

Principal Business 
Activities 

Paid-in Capital 
Investme
nt Method 
(Note 1) 

Cumulative 
Investment 

Amount 
Remitted from 

Taiwan at 
Beginning of 

Current Period 

Investment Amount Remitted 
or Recovered During the 

Current Period 

Cumulative 
Investment 

Amount 
Remitted from 
Taiwan at End 

of Current 
Period 

Investee 
Company 

Current Period 
Profit or Loss 

Direct or 
Indirect 

Ownership 
Percentage 

(%) 

Investment 
(Loss) / Profit 
Recognized in 
Current Period 

(Note 2) 

Ending 
Carrying 

Amount of 
Investment 

Investment 
Income 

Remitted to 
Taiwan as of 

End of Current 
Period 

Remitted Recovered 

ChenFeng 
(Dongguan) 

Co 

Sale and 
Contracting of 

Precision 
Machinery, 
Footwear 

Manufacturing 
Equipment, 
Ventilation 

Equipment, and 
Related Parts 

$ 60,448 
( USD 2,000 ) 

(2) 
$ 60,448 

( USD 2,000 ) 
$ - $ - 

$ 60,448 
( USD 2,000 ) 

( $ 468 ) 
( USD -15 ) 

100 

( $ 468 ) 
( USD -15 ) 

(二)-3 

$ 51,026 
( USD 1,676 ) 

$ 44,358 
( USD 1,440 ) 

 

Cumulative Investment Amount Remitted from Taiwan to Mainland 
China at End of Current 

Period Investment Amount Approved by the Investment 
Commission, MOEA 

Investment Ceiling for Mainland China under the Regulations of the 
Investment Commission, MOEA 

NTD 60,448 
( USD 2,000 ) 

NTD 60,448 
( USD 2,000 ) 

NTD 2,169,247 
( USD 71,251 ) 

 

Note  1 :  The inves tment  method is  c lass i f ied  i n to  the f o l lowing three types ;  ind icate  on ly  the app l icab le  category:  

1 .Di rec t  inves tment  in  Main land China.  

2 . Inves tment  in  Main land China v ia  a  th i rd -count ry  i nves tment  company.  

Note  2 :  In  t he co lumn for  i nves tment  pro f i t  o r  l oss  recogni zed in  the cur rent  per iod:  

1 . I f  the  inves tee is  s t i l l  i n  t he p reparato ry  s tage and has  no inves tme nt  pro f i t  o r  l oss ,  th is  shou ld  be ind icated.  

2 .The bas is  for  recogni z ing inves tment  pro f i t  o r  loss  is  c lass i f ied  in to  the f o l low ing th ree t ypes  and shou ld  be ind icated:  

(1)F inanc ia l  s ta tements  aud i ted and ce r t i f ied  by an i n ternat iona l  account ing f i rm  coope rat i ng wi t h  a  Ta iwanese CPA f i rm .  

(2)F inanc ia l  s ta tements  aud i ted and ce r t i f ied  by a  CPA cer t i f ied  by t he Ta iwanese pa rent  company.  

(3)Othe rs .  

Note  3 :  A l l  amounts  i n  th is  tab le  a re  p resented  in  NTD.  Fo r  amounts  in  f ore ign cur renc ies ,  they  a re  c onver ted  to  NTD at  the spot  exchange ra te  on  the  f inanc ia l  

s ta tement  date .  (The USD spot  exchange ra te  as  o f  September  30,  2025,  i s  30.445. )  
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ChenFul l  I n ternat ional  Company Lim i ted and Subs id iar ies  

Bus iness  Relat i onships  and Signi f icant  Transact ions  Between Parent  an d Subs id iar ies  

2025.1.1-2025.9.30  

Schedule 4  Uni t :  Unless  otherwise no ted,  amounts  are i n thousands of  NTD  

 

No. Name of Party Counterparty 
Relationship  
with Party 

Details of Transactions 

Account 
Amount  
(Note 4) 

Transaction  
Terms 

Proportion of 
Consolidated Total 
Revenue or Total 

Assets 

0 ChenFull International Co ChenFeng Co 1 Other Receivables   $ 1,800 Comparable to General 
Customers 

0.03% 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFeng Co 1 Rental Income    1,800 〃 0.08% 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFeng (Dongguan) Co  1 Purchases    7 〃 - 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFeng (Dongguan) Co  1 Sales Revenue    1,341 〃 0.06% 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFeng (Dongguan) Co  1 Contract Liabilities    5,425 〃 0.09% 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFeng (Dongguan) Co  1 Accounts Payable    34,236 〃 0.54% 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFeng (Dongguan) Co  1 Collections on Behalf of 
Others 

   7 〃 - 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFull Precision 1 Other Receivables    270 〃 - 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFull Precision 1 Rental Income    3,690 〃 0.15% 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFull Precision 1 Other Income    1,108 〃 0.05% 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFull Precision 1 Rental Expense    72 〃 - 

 ChenFull International Co ChenFull Precision 1 Manufacturing Expenses    3 〃 - 

Note  1 :  I n format ion on bus iness  t ransac t ions  between the pa rent  company and subs id ia r ies  shou ld  be i nd ica ted separate l y  in  th e “No. ”  co lumn,  us ing the fo l lowing 

number i ng method:  

1 .Parent  company is  ass igned 0 .  

2 .Subs id i ar i es  are  num bered sequent i a l l y  s tar t i ng  f rom 1 accord ing to  the company.  

Note  2 :  The re la t i onsh ip  wi th  the par t y  has  the fo l lowing three t ypes ;  ind icate  on ly  the app l icab le  t ype:  

1 .Parent  company t o  subs id ia ry  

2 .Subs id i ary  to  parent  company  

3 .Subs id i ary  to  subs id ia ry  

Note  3 :  The propor t ion o f  t ransac t i on amounts  to  conso l idated to ta l  revenue o r  to ta l  assets  i s  ca lcu la ted as  fo l lows :  fo r  ba l ance shee t  accounts ,  use the end ing 

ba lance d iv ided by c onso l i dated to ta l  assets ;  fo r  inc ome s ta tement  accounts ,  use the cumula t i ve  amount  dur ing  the  pe r i od d iv ided by conso l i dated to ta l  

revenue.  

Note  4 :  Th is  tab le  d isc loses  on ly  one -way t ransac t ions .  W hen prepar i ng the  conso l idated f i nanc ia l  s ta tements ,  the above t ransac t ions  have a l ready been 

e l im inated.。  
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ChenFul l  Internat ional  Company Limi ted and Subsidiar ies  

Signi f icant Transact ions wi th  Mainland China Investee Companies ,  Di rect ly or Indi rect ly via a Thi rd  Country,  Inc luding Thei r  Pr ices,  Payment 

Terms, Unreal ized Gains or  Losses, and Other  Relevant Informat ion  

2025.1.1 -2025.9.30  

Schedule 5 Unit: Unless otherwise noted, amounts are in thousands of NTD 
 

Investee Company in 
Mainland China 

Type of 
Transactio

n 

Sales、Purchases 

Price 

Transaction Terms 
Notes and Accounts 

Receivable (Payable) Unrealized 
Gains or 
Losses 

Remarks 

Amount Percentage Payment Terms 
Comparison 
with Regular 
Transactions 

Amount Percentage 

ChenFeng Machinery 
(Dongguan) Co., 

Ltd. 
Sales $ 1,341 0.06% 

Same as 
General 

Customers 

Same as 
General 

Customers 

Same as 
General 

Customers 
$ - - $ -  

 
Purchase

s 
7 - 

Same as 
General 

Customers 

Same as 
General 

Customers 

Same as 
General 

Customers 
(  34,236 ) (  0.54%) -  

           
           

           
           

 

 


